Public Document Pack

27 October 2018 Our Ref Licensing 05.11.18
Your Ref.
Contact. Hilary Dineen
Direct Dial. (01462) 474353
Email. hilary.dineen@north-herts.gov.uk

To: Members of the Committee: Councillor Michael Muir, Councillor Daniel Allen, Councillor Val
Bryant, Councillor Elizabeth Dennis-Harburg, Councillor Faye S Frost, Councillor Jean Green,
Councillor Gary Grindal, Councillor Simon Harwood, Councillor Ben Lewis, Councillor Jim McNally,
Councillor Paul Marment, Councillor Gerald Morris, Councillor Lisa Nash and Councillor Mike Rice

You are invited to attend a

MEETING OF THE LICENSING AND APPEALS COMMITTEE

to be held in the

COUNCIL CHAMBER, DISTRICT COUNCIL OFFICES, GERNON
ROAD, LETCHWORTH GARDEN CITY

On

MONDAY, 5TH NOVEMBER, 2018 AT 6.30 PM

Yours sincerely,

/x'szf.-h/_____ )

Jeanette Thompson
Service Director — Legal and Community



Item

Agenda
Part |

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

MINUTES - 12 MARCH 2018
To take as read and approve as a true record the minutes of the meeting of
this Committee held on the 12 March 2018

NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS

Members should notify the Chairman of other business which they wish to
be discussed by the Committee at the end of the business set out in the
agenda. They must state the circumstances which they consider justify the
business being considered as a matter of urgency.

The Chairman will decide whether any item(s) raised will be considered.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

Members are reminded that any declarations of interest in respect of any
business set out in the agenda, should be declared as either a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest or Declarable Interest and are required to notify the
Chairman of the nature of any interest declared at the commencement of the
relevant item on the agenda. Members declaring a Disclosable Pecuniary
Interest must withdraw from the meeting for the duration of the item.
Members declaring a Declarable Interest, wished to exercise a ‘Councillor
Speaking Right’, must declare this at the same time as the interest, move to
the public area before speaking to the item and then must leave the room
before the debate and vote.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
To receive petitions and presentations from members of the public.

GAMBLING ACT 2005: STATEMENT OF LICENSING PRINCIPLES 2019-
2022

The purpose of this report is for the Licensing and Appeals Committee to
consider the draft Statement of Licensing Principles (“the Policy”) prepared by
officers and the public consultation responses in order to recommend the
adoption of a final Statement of Licensing Principles to Full Council.

INFORMATION NOTE: LICENSING ANNUAL REPORT

The purpose of this information note is to give the Licensing and Appeals
Committee an overview of the work undertaken by the Licensing Service over
the past twelve months.

Page

(Pages 1

- 4)

(Pages 5
- 86)

(Pages
87 - 94)



11

12

13

14

15

16

Agenda Item 2

NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
LICENSING AND APPEALS COMMITTEE

MEETING HELD IN THE FOUNDATION HOUSE, ICKNIELD WAY, LETCHWORTH
GARDEN CITY ON MONDAY, 12TH MARCH, 2018 AT 7.30 PM

MINUTES
Present: Councillors  Councillor  Michael Muir (Chairman), lan Albert,
David Barnard, Elizabeth Dennis, Faye Frost, Jean Green, Jim McNally
and Mike Rice.
In Attendance: Steve Cobb (Licensing Manager), Andy Godman (Head of Housing and

Public Protection), James Ellis (Legal Advisor) and lan Gourlay
(Committee and Member Services Manager)

Also Present: Councillor Bernard Lovewell (Executive Member for Housing and
Environmental Health), Hannah Sweetman (Licensing Officer) and Milly
Shiells (Licensing Officer).
1 member of the public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Simon Harwood and Gerald Morris.
MINUTES - 28 NOVEMBER 2017

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Committee held on 28 November 2017
be approved as a true record of the proceedings and be signed by the Chairman.

NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS
There was no notification of other business.
CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman advised that, in line with the Code of Conduct, any Declarations of Interest
should be declared immediately prior to the item in question.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation.

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS TO THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE
HIRE LICENSING POLICY

The Licensing Manager presented a report of the Head of Housing and Public Protection
summarising the responses to the public consultation regarding the Council’'s proposed
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy, and requesting the Committee to make a
recommendation to the Executive Member for Housing and Environmental Health regarding
the Policy. The following appendices were submitted with the report:

Appendix A — Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy published for public
consultation;

Appendix B — Schedule of consultation responses; and

Appendix C — Proposed Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy (incorporating
the proposed amendments).

Page 1



Monday, 12th March, 2018

The Licensing Manager advised that hackney carriages and private hire vehicles had a key
role to play in society as they were able to provide safe, secure and comfortable transport
whether in the street or from door-to-door. This was particularly important to vulnerable
persons who may have mobility issues, physical or mental incapacity, or in areas where there
was little or no public transport. Journeys could vary from airport drop off or collections, to
late-night economy related transport, to shopping trips for the elderly, to vital health care trips
such as doctors or hospital appointments, to trips to wellbeing/social interaction clubs or work-
related journeys.

The Licensing Manager stated that users of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles rightly
had an expectation that a robust licensing regime existed so that vehicles were safe and
drivers were trustworthy persons who would not exploit the opportunity of transporting
vulnerable and/or lone passengers. On the whole, the hackney carriage and private hire
provision in North Hertfordshire was of a high standard; higher than average standards were
expected from licence holders and, in return, the Council set the fare tariff at a higher than
average level.

The Licensing Manager explained that the proposed policy amendments sought to build on
the successful existing policy, but introduced a number of enhancements to further secure the
licensing objectives set out on page 2 of the policy, in particular public safety. As minor
amendments to existing policies fell within the remit of the relevant Executive Member, in this
case the Executive Member for Housing and Environmental Health, whilst significant
amendments are reserved for Cabinet. Sections 8.58—8.61 of the report outlined the definition
of minor amendments and, at the end of the Committee’s debate, Members would need to
consider whether the proposed amendments fell within the definition of minor or significant to
determine the appropriate decision-maker.

The Licensing Manager commented that he had attached the full consultation version of the
policy, including all the proposed options, as Appendix A to the report and the final proposed
policy, with the suggested options, as Appendix C to the report. Despite sending
approximately 300 e-mails to existing licence holders, creating a separate consultation page
on the Council’'s website and promoting the consultation on social media, only 6 responses
were received and these had been included as Appendix B to the report. It would not be
unreasonable to interpret this poor response as ambivalence on the part of the trade,
however, he was sure that there would be a belated response once the impact of the changes
became apparent.

The Licensing Manager advised that the policy tried to balance the impact of the proposed
changes between the need to protect the public against ensuring that the financial impact on
the trade was proportionate to the intended outcome. One of the major problems faced was
the lack of understanding amongst the public of the difference between a hackney carriage
and private hire vehicle. For the avoidance of any doubt, hackney carriages could wait on
official hackney carriage ranks, anywhere where the public could lawfully park or be flagged
down in the street; in other words, the booking took place at the time of entry into the vehicle.
Private hire vehicles had to be pre-booked through a private hire operator and then
despatched to the hirer; any private hire vehicle not pre-booked was likely to invalidate the
insurance for the journey.

The Licensing Manager stated that a number of livery and sighage options to assist with this
distinction had been considered, such as vehicle colour and council logos, however, it had
been determined that this would result in a disproportionate cost to the trade. Instead, the
policy proposed that private hire vehicles would be required to display door signage stating
that they must be pre-booked and be prohibited from displaying illuminated roof signs which
all hackney carriages must display. It was believed that this provided sufficient distinction
between the two vehicle types, which could also be further publicised on the Council’s
website.

Page 2



Monday, 12th March, 2018

The Licensing Manager explained that, with the advancement of vehicle manufacturing, the
current policy of an upper age limit for hackney carriages could be deemed to be
disproportionate and arbitrary. It was therefore proposed that the upper age limit be removed,
subject to the vehicle being able to pass the Council’s stringent vehicle testing requirements.
Additionally, with the Council keen to promote a cleaner and greener environment, it was
proposed to offer a discounted licence fee for electric or hybrid vehicles until such time as the
Government introduced legislation in this area.

The Licensing Manager commented that the Equality Act 2010 introduced a number of
welcome protections for society, including a duty for local licensing authorities to ensure that
sufficient wheelchair accessible transport provision was available. Currently, the Council
restricted all new applicants into the hackney carriage trade to wheelchair accessible vehicles,
but allowed existing licence holders to continue to replace non-wheelchair accessible vehicles
on a like-for-like basis. It was felt that this would be unduly restrictive to new entrants, and
therefore the policy now proposed that the requirement for wheelchair accessible vehicles was
only enforced when the number of wheelchair accessible vehicles fell below 10% of the total
hackney carriage provision (currently operating at approximately 8% in North Hertfordshire). It
was believed that this achieved a balance between providing adequate wheelchair accessible
vehicles and allowing new entrants into the trade without disproportionate barriers.

The Licensing Manager advised that the most frequent complaints received were allegations
of overcharging, which were often inconclusive, as it was one person’s word against another.
Often the complainant did not have the drivers badge number, the vehicle registration or
licence plate number of the vehicle making it difficult to establish who the allegation was
against. These complaints frequently related to Tariff 2 (time and a half) being incorrectly
applied, as tariffs were manually selected by the driver. With the advancement in taximeter
technology, taximeters now had the ability to automatically set the relevant tariff based on the
date and time (these were called calendar meters), plus had attachable printers that
generated a receipt for each journey detailing vehicle details, date, time, tariff, distance and
fare charged. It was felt appropriate to introduce a mandatory requirement that each hackney
carriage had a calendar meter with printer and that a printed receipt was issued for every
journey. It was realised that this would have a financial impact on the licence holders, and
therefore it was proposed to make this mandatory from 1 April 2021.

The Licensing Manager stated that the Council needed to ensure that the drivers of hackney
carriage were safe drivers with good driving records, were mentally and physically fit, were
honest and were persons that would not take advantage of their position of trust to abuse,
assault, defraud or otherwise harm members of the public. Appendix B of the proposed policy
contained the Council’s definition of the legal fit and proper person’ test for transparency. It
further detailed convictions that would preclude applicants from obtaining a licence for the
most serious of offences or for multiple offences where their combined effect precluded them.
Currently, the policy relied on existing licence holders to notify the Council of any caution or
conviction they received, which had the potential to put the public at risk if the Council was not
informed and only found out at the next licence renewal that could be up to 3 years later. It
was now proposed that licence holders registered with the new online DBS checking facility,
whereby the Council could periodically check that each licensed driver's DBS had not
changed i.e. no cautions or convictions had been obtained.

The Licensing Manager referred to a number of other minor changes proposed and all
proposals were highlighted in red text in the amended policy set out at Appendix C to the
report.

In response to a number of Members' questions and queries, the Licensing Manager
responded as follows:

o the cost of a taximeter was in the region of £400-£600;
e in Paragraph 2.7.2 of the proposed policy, the minimum percentage of wheelchair
accessible vehicles should be 10% and not 15% as stated;

Page 3



Monday, 12th March, 2018

the definition in the policy of a “fit and proper person” had been formulated by the
country’s leading lawyer on taxi licensing and was a nationally accepted definition,
recognised by the Courts;

drivers were able to obtain an MOT certificate for their vehicles at any registered MOT
station, but would also be subject to the annual NHDC Licensing Team Compliance Test;
the Licensing Manager undertook to respond to the consultee who had raised the issue of
assistance dog owners and their dogs being refused entry into taxis, in order to explain
the Council’'s approach in dealing with such issues; and

in terms of the number of consecutive hours a driver could operate, whilst employed
drivers were covered by the European Union Working Time Directive, self-employed
drivers were not. For public safety reasons, the Licensing Manager therefore undertook
to remind all drivers not to continue operating when tired.

In supporting the proposed amended policy, the Committee recommended the following
further minor amendments:

the driver DBS check should be an annual, rather than three-yearly, check;

clarification in the policy that, for the first seven years of a licensed vehicle’s life, NHDC
Licensing Team Compliance checks were carried out on an annual basis, with six-monthly
checks thereafter; and

in respect of Paragraph 3.10.2 of the policy regarding safeguarding training, it was agreed
that the Driver Knowledge Test should be enhanced by further questions regarding
safeguarding, in lieu of the introduction of a mandatory test for all drivers, as currently
being piloted by East Hertfordshire District Council.

RESOLVED:

D That the results of the public consultation be noted, and the proposed policy
amendments be supported,;

2) That it be determined that the proposed amendments are minor, in so far as they do
not amend the licensing principles or main focus of the existing policy; and

3) That the Executive Member for Housing and Environmental Health be recommended

to approve the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy amendments set
out in Appendix C to the report, and the further minor amendments made by the
Committee, under Delegated Powers.

REASON FOR DECISION: To ensure that the Council has in place a robust and up to date
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy.

The meeting closed at 8.23 pm

Chairman

Page 4



Agenda Iltem 6

LICENSING AND APPEALS COMMITTEE
5 NOVEMBER 2018

PART 1 - PUBLIC DOCUMENT

TITLE OF REPORT: GAMBLING ACT 2005: STATEMENT OF LICENSING
PRINCIPLES 2019 - 2022

REPORT OF: LICENSING MANAGER

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: CLLR BERNARD LOVEWELL
HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

COUNCIL PRIORITY: PROSPER AND PROTECT

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Licensing and Appeals Committee to consider the
draft Statement of Licensing Principles (“the Policy”) prepared by officers and the
public consultation responses in order to recommend the adoption of a final Statement
of Licensing Principles to Full Council.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Licensing and Appeals Committee consider the consultation responses and
recommend the adoption of the Policy appended at Appendix A to Full Council.

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Licensing authorities are required to publish a policy every three years by virtue of
section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 (“the Act”).

3.2 A new policy must be published by 3 January 2019 to comply with this statutory
requirement.

3.3 The Policy builds on the effectiveness of the existing policy with minor amendments to

reflect changes in legislation, statutory guidance, consultation responses and further
clarification on the requirement for local area risk assessments.

Page 5



4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

7.1

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED
The only alternative option would be a policy that differs in content and/or extent.

An alternative policy has not been considered as the proposed Policy strikes an
effective balance between ensuring the promotion of the licensing objectives and not
being overly prescriptive or prohibitive to applicants and licence holders.

CONSULTATION WITH RELEVANT MEMBERS AND EXTERNAL
ORGANISATIONS

The Executive Member for Housing and Environmental Health has been kept informed
throughout the drafting of the Policy and the public consultation process.

The Act requires the licensing authority to consult with a prescribed group of persons
(see paragraph 9.1 of the report). Further information on the list of consultees is
available in section A3.4 of the Policy.

To comply with this requirement, the licensing authority published the Policy on a
dedicated webpage on the Council’s website with details of the consultation period and
an explanation of how to make a representation.

All organisations listed in section A3.4 of the Policy were sent a consultation email or
letter directing them to the consultation page.

Only four responses were received from Royston Town Council, GamCare, NHDC
Environmental Health and the Association of British Bookmakers. The responses are
summarised, with officer responses, in Appendix B and published in full in Appendix C.

FORWARD PLAN

This report does not contain a recommendation on a key decision and has not been
referred to in the Forward Plan.

BACKGROUND

The licensing of gambling was previously regulated by the Gaming Board for Great
Britain until the introduction of the Gambling Act 2005 with effect from 1 September
2007. Prior to this transfer, the local authorities’ only responsibility in respect of
gambling was the regulation of small society lotteries through a local registration
scheme. For the purpose of undertaking its responsibilities under the Act, the Council
are acting as the licensing authority for North Hertfordshire.

Page 6



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

8.2

8.3

The Act transferred the overall regulation of gambling to the Gambling Commission
with local authorities acting as the licensing authorities and having responsibility for a
variety of licensing functions in respect of gambling premises such as casinos, bingo
halls, betting shops, track betting and amusement arcades.

In preparation for this new responsibility, local authorities had to publish a policy by 3
January 2007 in accordance with section 349 of the Act. The Act requires the policy to
be kept under regular review and formally reviewed by way of public consultation, and
adoption by Full Council, every three years. The existing policy was last adopted with
effect from 3 January 2016 therefore the statutory three year period expires on 2
January 2019.

The Policy seeks to strike a balance between the interests of licence holders,
applicants and residents in the promotion of the licensing objectives defined by the Act.
Additionally, it outlines the licensing authority’s expectations of licence holders in
promoting the licensing objectives, whilst advising on the licensing authority’s
obligations under the Act, including its interpretation of the Act and/or Statutory
Guidance where necessary.

It is the licensing authority’s intention that the Policy offers appropriate protection for
residents and a streamlined approach to regulation that eases unnecessary burdens
on businesses.

RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS

Existing Policy

Officers are of the view that in general terms the existing policy is working well,
therefore, the only significant changes proposed are those detailed below. The Policy
has been updated to reflect minor legislative changes and revised Statutory Guidance

issued since its adoption.

Any amendments to the existing policy have been highlighted in red text in the Policy
attached as Appendix A.

Local Area Profile
Local authorities are now able to include a local area profile giving an overview of the
district covering issues that may be relevant to the consideration of applications for

gambling premises. These issues include, but are not limited to, areas of deprivation,
unemployment or crime.

Page 7



8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

The Policy now includes a local area profile as a separate appendix. Section A2.7.2
now states that “....applicants will be expected to have regard to the local area profile
and demonstrate that there will be no adverse affect on the community in which the
premises is, or is proposed, to be located’.

Local Area Risk Assessments

The Gambling Commission’s Social Responsibility Code has been further strengthened
by their guidance document Licensing Conditions and Codes of Practice 2015 which
now requires a risk assessment for each gambling premises having regard to the
impact on the locality and the local area profile.

The Policy now sets out the minimum requirements of these risk assessments for North
Hertfordshire to ensure that operators of existing and new premises are mindful of their
impact on the specific locality of each premises. Additionally, the Policy makes it clear
that risk assessments will form part of the Council’s inspection regime and may also be
considered as part of any enforcement action.

Consideration of Consultation Responses

Royston Town Council resolved that it welcomed the Policy although it had strong
views that no further gambling premises licences should be granted in Royston. Whilst
the support is welcome, one of the main principles of the Policy is that each application
is determined on its own merits (see paragraph 9.4 of this report). The introduction of
local area profiles and risk assessments should strengthen the existing safeguards
against the provision of irresponsible gambling premises.

GamcCare is the leading provider of information, advice, support and free counselling
for the prevention and treatment of problem gambling. They operate the National
Gambling Helpline, provide treatment for problem gamblers and their families, create
awareness about responsible gambling and treatment, and encourage an effective
approach to responsible gambling within the gambling industry. They provided a
generic response to the consultation focussing primarily on their support for local area
profiles and risk assessments which have now been included in the Policy.

GamCare also suggested that we should primarily consider applications from
GamCare certified operators. Whilst the Policy promotes the importance of
organisations such as GamCare and their role in promoting responsible gambling, the
principles of each application being determined on its own merits remains paramount.
It is not proposed therefore to include this suggestion however GamCare certification is
something that could be included by operators within individual risk assessments and
in addressing the local area profile as part of an application.

Page 8



8.10

8.11

8.12

9.1

9.2

Gosschalks Solicitors, acting on behalf of the Association of British Bookmakers, made
a number of comments. In general terms, as part of a generic response, they made no
adverse comments in relation to our Policy; indeed they offered support to the effective
use of local area profiles and risk assessments. They also referred to the national
decline of betting premises, low problem gambling rates and new planning controls
from April 2015 affording local authorities additional controls through the planning
process. Local decision-making should focus on the promotion of the licensing
objectives and these issues should not unduly influence the determination of
applications.

Gosschalks Solicitors, acting on behalf of the Association of British Bookmakers, made
a number of specific comments relating to the Policy detailed within Appendix B.
Whilst a number of their comments suggested that our Policy should be revised to
remove references to measures they believe are not directly linked to the licensing
objectives, changes haven’t been made as it is believed that these measures are all
relevant considerations relating to the licensing objectives. For example, proximity to
cashpoints and alcohol licensed premises is relevant when considering the potential
harm to vulnerable people with gambling problems. Similarly, vulnerable persons may
be visiting religious buildings for support and the proximity of gambling premises would
be a relevant consideration.

Lastly, Gosschalks Solicitors, acting on behalf of the Association of British
Bookmakers, identified a possible misunderstanding in paragraph C5.1 of the Policy
which stated that licensing authorities could restrict the number of betting machines in
a licensed betting premises; this doesn’t make clear that the licensing authority cannot
restrict the number of gaming machines. The Policy appended as Appendix A has
been amended to clarify this possible misunderstanding.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Section 8.2.3 (b) of the Constitution states the Licensing and Appeals Committee terms
of reference include ‘fo make recommendations to Council on the statements of
licensing policy under the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005’.

Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 requires licensing authorities to publish a
statement of licensing principles every three years in accordance with prescribed
requirements. The adoption of the statement of licensing principles is a non-executive
function by virtue of the Act and Statutory Guidance and is reserved for Full Council by
virtue of section 4.2.1(e) of the Constitution.

Page 9



9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

10.

10.1

In preparing the Policy, the licensing authority must (and has) published any proposed
policy before giving it effect and must consult with:

o the chief officer of police for the licensing authority’s area;

e 0one or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of
persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area;

e One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of
persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions
under this Act.

The Act specifies that licensing authorities shall aim to permit the use of premises for
gambling in so far as the authority thinks it:

e in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued under section 24 of the
Act;

¢ in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by The Gambling Commission
under section 25 of the Act;

e reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to the above);

¢ in accordance with the Statement of Licensing Principles (subject to the above).

The licensing authority may only depart from its policy on an individual application
where it is necessary to promote the licensing objectives and to comply with the
requirements of paragraph 9.2 above. Departing from the policy for any other reason
exposes the licensing authority to the possibility of legal challenge.

The Policy must (and does) support the Act and always seek to promote the three
licensing objectives specified therein:

e preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime;

e ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way;

e protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Local authorities have the ability to set their own local fees for the Act on a cost
recovery only basis, subject to centrally prescribed maximum amounts. The
administration and enforcement of the Act, including the adoption of a policy, places no
additional financial burden on the Council as all costs are recovered through fees. In
accordance with a previous resolution of the Licensing and Appeals Committee, all
locally set fees are subject to three-yearly costing exercises to ensure they recover all
reasonable costs.

Page 10



11.

111

11.2

12.

12.1

12.2

13.

13.1

14.

14.1

15.
15.1
15.2
15.3
16.

16.1

RISK IMPLICATIONS

If a policy is not adopted and published by 3 January 2019 in accordance with section
349 of the Act, the licensing authority would be at risk of challenge for determining
applications against an unlawful policy.

A clear and robust adopted policy provides the licensing authority with the opportunity
to enhance its work with relevant stakeholders and to mitigate local risks to the
licensing objectives proactively.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty, public bodies must, in the exercise of their
functions, give due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment,
victimisation, to advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between
those who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.

The Policy does not place any barriers or unique requirements on any person on the
grounds of ethnicity, gender, religion, or any other protected characteristic. Officers
work with all applicants and licence holders, where appropriate, to ensure that the
Council’s duty under the Equality Act 2010 is met, for example, guidance noted could
be provided in other languages upon request.

SOCIAL VALUE IMPLICATIONS
The Social Value Act and the “go local” policy do not apply to this report.
HUMAN RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The Policy will not place any new human resource implications on the licensing
authority.

APPENDICES

Appendix A Proposed Statement of Licensing Principles
Appendix B Summary of public consultation responses
Appendix C  Consultation responses in full

CONTACT OFFICERS

Steve Cobb, Licensing Manager
steven.cobb@north-herts.gov.uk; ext 4833

Page 11


mailto:steven.cobb@north-herts.gov.uk

16.2 Jeanette Thompson, Service Director — Legal and Community
jeanette.thompson@north-herts.gov.uk; ext 4370

16.3 James Ellis, Legal Regulatory Team Manager
james.ellis@north-herts.gov.uk; ext 4319

16.4 Jodie Penfold, Group Accountant
jodie.penfold@north-herts.gov.uk; ext 4332

16.5 Tim Everitt, Performance & Risk Officer
tim.everitt@north-herts.gov.uk; ext 4646

16.6 Jo Keshishian, Human Resources Business Partner
jo.keshishian@north-herts.gov.uk; ext 4314

16.7 Reuben Ayavoo, Senior Policy Officer
reuben.ayavoo@north-herts.gov.uk; ext 4212

17. BACKGROUND PAPERS

17.1 Gambling Act 2005
17.2 Consultation

17.3  Existing policy

Page 12


mailto:jeanette.thompson@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:james.ellis@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:jodie.penfold@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:tim.everitt@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:jo.keshishian@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:reuben.ayavoo@north-herts.gov.uk
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/19/contents
https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/home/licensing/licensing-consultations
https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/home/licensing/gambling/gambling-act-policy

NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE ‘ q I

DISTRICT COUNCIL m

PROPOSED
STATEMENT
OF
LICENSING
PRINCIPLES

as required by

THE GAMBLING ACT 2005

2019 - 2021

For further information please contact:
Licensing Manager

North Hertfordshire District Council

P O Box 10613

Nottingham

NG6 6DW

Tel: 01462 474000
Email: licensing@north-herts.gov.uk
Web: www.north-herts.gov.uk

Page 13


mailto:licensing@north-herts.gov.uk
http://www.north-herts.gov.uk/

Section A
Section B
Section C
Section D
Section E
Section F

Section G

Appendix A

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction and Declaration

General Considerations

Premises Licences Applications

Permits, Temporary and Occasional Use Notices
Delegation

Miscellaneous

Glossary

Local Area Profile

Pages 3-14

Pages 14 - 23
Pages 24 - 28
Pages 29 - 35
Pages 36 - 37
Pages 37 - 38

Page 39

Page 40

It is the Council’s clear intention that this Statement of Principles is read as one complete
document rather than a series of individual sections. Reading individual sections in
isolation may not fully explain the consistent threads running throughout the statement or
the relationship of an individual section with other aspects of the statement. The Council
strongly recommends that applicants read the entire statement as part of any application

process.

Page 14




PART A: INTRODUCTION AND DECLARATION

Al.

Al.l

Al.2

Al.3

A2.

A2.1

A2.2

Overview

In exercising most of its functions under the Gambling Act 2005 (“the Act”) North
Hertfordshire District Council (“the Council”), acting as the licensing authority, must have
regard to the licensing objectives as defined in section 1 of the Act. The three licensing
objectives are:

e preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime;

e ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way;

e protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling.

The Council is aware that, in making decisions in respect of premises licences and
temporary use notices, section 153 of the Act prescribes that it should “aim to permit” the
use of premises for gambling in so far as it is satisfied that the application is:

(@ in accordance with any relevant Code of Practice issued by the Gambling
Commission;
(i) in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission (“the

Commission’s Guidance”);
(iii) subject to (i) and (ii), reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and
(iv) subject to (i), (i) and (iii), in accordance with this Statement of Licensing Principles.

In accordance with the Commission’s Guidance, the Council acknowledges that:

0] moral objections to gambling are not valid reasons to reject applications for
premises licences; and
(i) demand is not a criteria for a licensing authority.

The District of North Hertfordshire

Located less than forty miles north from central London, North Hertfordshire is a
predominantly rural district and contains interesting market towns and numerous
picturesque villages and hamlets. It is an attractive area in which to live and work, and has
a wide variety of attractions including museums and galleries, historic markets, parks and
areas of natural beauty.

The district was formed in 1974 combining the former Urban Districts of Hitchin,
Letchworth, Baldock and Royston with Hitchin Rural District. In addition to this, North
Hertfordshire now includes a significant part of the Great Ashby development, north-east of
Stevenage. It occupies the low chalk hills of the north-eastern Chilterns, extending north
into the Bedfordshire and Cambridgeshire plain around Ashwell and Hinxworth, and south
to the valley of the River Lea around Codicote. The area south and west of Hitchin is
dominated by small hamlets linked by a network of winding lanes with high hedgerows,
while to the east of Baldock, the landscape is open, with few hedges and larger, more
nucleated villages.

Page 15



A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

A2.6

A2.7

Each of the towns has a distinctive character: Hitchin, Baldock and Royston are medieval
market towns, each retaining numerous historic buildings, while Letchworth Garden City is
world famous as the first Garden City.

The towns offer a wide range of shopping facilities, combining high street names with
traditional markets, interesting antique and craft centres and small speciality shops.
Farmers’ Markets are held regularly at Hitchin, Letchworth Garden City and Royston,
selling a range of local produce.

The villages of North Hertfordshire are very much community based, with cultural and
community activities a key part of village life. Cultural and community activities are equally
important in the four main towns, each also having a diverse and active night-time
economy.

As at 1% August 2018, the number of licences, permits and registrations issued were as
follows:

Casinos 0
Bingo premises 0
Betting shops 14
Track betting premises 0
Adult gaming centres 1
Gaming machine permits 101
Small society lotteries 72

Local Area Profile

A2.7.1 Appendix A details the current local area profile for North Hertfordshire. Whilst no specific

concerns have been identified with a direct link to gambling, applicants will be expected to
have regard to the local area profile and demonstrate that there will be no adverse affect on
community in which the premises is, or is proposed, to be located.

A2.7.2 The local area profile will be kept under review and Appendix A will be amended to reflect

A2.8

any changes in the local landscape and actual or perceived concerns in relation to
gambling activity.

Premises—specific Risk Assessments

A2.8.1 The guidance document ‘Licensing Conditions and Codes of Practice 2015’ issued by the

Gambling Commission further strengthened the Commission’s Social Responsibility Code
(“the Code”) by including the requirement for applicants to produce a risk assessment for
each individual premises having regard to the locality and the Local Area Profile. These risk
assessments are required from all applicants for new premises licences and from existing
licence holders seeking to vary a premises licence. The Code also requires all operators of
casinos, adult gaming centres, bingo premises, family entertainment centres, betting shops
and remote betting intermediaries to assess local risks to the licensing objectives and to
have policies, procedures and control measures in place to mitigate any identifiable risks.
Operators are required by the Code to make the risk assessments available for all new or
variation premises licence applications.

Page 16



A2.8.2 The Code requires the licensing authority to set out matters it expects operators to consider

A3.

A3.1

A3.2

as part of their risk assessments in its Statement of Gambling Principles. North
Hertfordshire District Council will expect risk assessments to include, but not be limited to:

e Location in respect of risk to children, for example proximity to schools,
playgrounds, leisure facilities and other areas where children may gather such as
bus stops, shops, and cinemas

e Location in respect of risk to vulnerable adults, for example proximity to hospitals,
residential care homes, GP surgeries and other medical facilities, and addiction
clinics or help centres.

e Location in respect of matters of faith, for example proximity to churches, mosques,
temples, and other places of worship

e Location in respect of other relevant facilities, for example proximity to other
gambling outlets, banks, post offices, cashpoints, refreshment providers, premises
selling alcohol, and other entertainment venues

e Areas that are experiencing, or have experienced, problems with anti-social
behaviour, street drinking, underage drinking, drug taking or dealing, and attempted
underage gambling

e Local arrangements for sharing information regarding self-exclusions, problem
gambling, and other gambling trends

¢ Information held by the operator regarding self-exclusions, problem gambling, and
other gambling trends (existing premises)

e Local crime statistics

e Layout of the premises and adequate staffing numbers to discourage access by
children and vulnerable persons

Consultation

Licensing authorities are required by the Act to publish a statement of the principles which

they intend to apply when exercising their statutory licensing functions. This statement

must be published at least every three years however it must also be reviewed from ‘time to

time’ where necessary, for example due to newly issued Gambling Commission Guidance.

On such occasions, the Council will re-consult on any proposed amendments that affect the

focus or main principles before re-publishing the revised Statement of Principles.

This Statement of Principles fully supports North Hertfordshire District Council’s vision of:
“making North Hertfordshire a vibrant place for people to live, work and prosper”

whilst offering a wide-range of facilities within a safe and enjoyable environment.

Page 17



A3.3 The Council consulted widely upon this statement before adopting and publishing the final
version. The Act requires that the following parties are consulted by licensing authorities:

the Chief Officer of Police

one or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of
persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area

one or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of
persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions
under the Gambling Act 2005.

A3.4 In preparing and reviewing this Statement of Principles the Council consulted with:

Hertfordshire Constabulary

Hertfordshire Fire & Rescue Service

The Gambling Commission

HM Revenue and Customs

North Hertfordshire District Council Development Control

North Hertfordshire District Council Environmental Health

North Hertfordshire District Council Community Safety

North Hertfordshire District Council Legal Services

Hertfordshire County Council Safeguarding Children Board
Hertfordshire Director of Public Health

All existing Gambling Act 2005 premises licence and permit holders
Premises licence and club premises certificate holders under the Licensing Act
2003 affected by this Policy

Current small society lotteries registered with North Hertfordshire District Council
Local neighbouring authorities

Association of British Bookmakers Ltd

BACTA (British Amusement Catering Trade Association)

Bingo Association

British Association of Leisure Parks, Piers & Attractions Limited
Business in Sport and Leisure

Gamcare

Town Centre BIDs

Local residents via the Council’s website and social media

A3.5 The consultation took place between 27" August 2018 and 215 October 2018 and followed,
where practicable, the Government’s Consultation Principles (published January 2016),
which is available at:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/492132/2016

0111 Consultation principles final.pdf

The full list of comments made and the Council’s consideration of those comments is
available on request from:

Page 18


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/492132/20160111_Consultation_principles_final.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/492132/20160111_Consultation_principles_final.pdf

A3.6

A4.

A4.1

AS5.

A5.1

A5.2

The Licensing Manager

North Hertfordshire District Council
P O Box 10613

Nottingham

NG6 6DW

01462 474000 or licensing@north-herts.gov.uk

The Statement of Principles was approved at a meeting of the Full Council on 22 November
2018 and was published on the Council’s website, www.north-herts.gov.uk on 3 December
2018.

Declaration

In producing its final Statement of Principles, the Council declares that it has had regard to
the licensing objectives of the Act, the Guidance to Licensing Authorities issued by the
Gambling Commission, and any responses received during the consultation process.

Review of the Statement of Principles

In the intervening period between statutory reviews the Council will periodically review the
Policy to ensure it remains relevant to emerging and local issues.

Significant Policy Amendments

A5.2.1 Any amendment to this Statement of Principles, other than those made under section A5.3

A5.3

below, will be subject to formal consultation and adoption.

Administrative Policy Amendments

A5.3.1 Administrative amendments to this Statement of Principles, required by virtue of legislative

changes or new Guidance to Licensing Authorities issued by the Gambling Commission,
will be made by the Licensing Manager acting on behalf of the Council under the Scheme
of Delegation contained within the Council Constitution.

A5.3.2 Amendments under this section are restricted to those required to accurately reflect the

AG.

A6.1

current legislative position rather than amendments that change the focus of local policy.
They will not necessitate the adoption of a new Statement of Principles nor amend the
stated three year period of the existing Statement of Principles so amended.

Each application determined on its own merits
It is important to note that this Statement of Principles will not override the right of any
person to make an application, make representations about an application, or apply for a

review of a licence, as the Council will consider each on its own individual merits and in
accordance with the statutory requirements of the Act.

Page 19


mailto:licensing@north-herts.gov.uk
http://www.north-herts.gov.uk/

AT.

A7.1

A7.2

A7.3

A7.4

A7.5

A7.6

A8.

A8.1

A8.2

Regulated gambling activities

Gambling is defined in the Act as either gaming, betting or taking part in a lottery.
Gaming means the playing of a game of chance for a prize.

Betting means:

e the making or accepting of a bet on the outcome of a race, competition or any other
event

¢ the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring
whether anything is true or not true.

A lottery is where persons are required to pay in order to take part in an arrangement
during the course of which one or more prizes are allocated by a process reliant wholly on
chance.

Private gaming in private dwellings and on domestic occasions is exempt from licensing or
registration provided that:

e no charge is made for participation
¢ only equal chance gaming takes place
e it takes place at a premises to which the public have no right of access

Domestic betting between inhabitants of the same household or between employees of the
same employer is also exempt.

Non-commercial gaming and betting (where no part of the proceeds, including proceeds
from ancillary activities such as alcohol sales, is for private gain) may be exempt under
certain circumstances. As this is a complex area of the Act, further advice should be sought
from council licensing officers.

Authorisations under the Act

The Act provides for three categories of licence; operating licences, personal licences and
premises licences. The Council will be responsible for the determination and issuing of
premises licences. The responsibility for operating and personal licences rests with the
Gambling Commission.

Premises licences issued by the Council cover the following types of premises:

casinos

bingo premises

betting premises

track betting

adult gaming centres (AGC)

family entertainment centres (FEC)

Page 20



A8.3

A8.3

A8.4

A9.

A9.1

A9.2

A10.

Al10.1

The Council will be responsible for the determination and issuing of five categories of
permit:

unlicensed family entertainment centre (UFEC) gaming machine permits
(alcohol) licensed premises gaming machine permits

prize gaming permits

club gaming permits

club gaming machine permits

The Council will be responsible for the determination and issuing of two categories of
temporary authorisations:

e temporary use notices (TUN)
e occasional use notices (OUN)

The Council will be responsible for the determination and registration of applications for
small society lotteries.

The Gambling Commission

The Gambling Commission regulates gambling in the public interest. It does so by keeping
crime out of gambling, by ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way and
by protecting children and vulnerable people.

The Commission:

e provides independent advice to the Government about the manner in which
gambling is carried out, the effects of gambling, and the regulation of gambling
generally

e issues guidance pursuant to section 25 of the Act about the manner in which
licensing authorities exercise their licensing functions under the Act and, in
particular, the principles to be applied.

e issues Codes of Practice pursuant to section 24 of the Act about the way in which
facilities for gambling are provided, which may also include provisions about the
advertising of gambling facilities.

Responsible Authorities

Regulations require the Council to state the principles they will apply in exercising their
powers under section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, a body which is competent
to advise the authority about the protection of children from harm. The principles are:

¢ the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the
licensing authority’s area

o the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, rather
than any particular vested interest group

In accordance with the suggestion in the Commission’s Guidance, the Council designates
the Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children Board (HSCB) for this purpose.

Page 21



A10.2

Al10.3

Al10.4

A10.5

The contact details for all responsible authorities under the Act are:

The Licensing Authority Hertfordshire Constabulary

(acting as a responsible authority) The Licensing Officer

The Licensing Manager HItChIn Police Station

North Hertfordshire District Council College Road

P O Box 10613 Hitchin

Nottingham, NG6 6DW SG5 1JX

licensing@north-herts.gov.uk LicensingEasternArea@herts.pnn.police.uk

Hertfordshire Fire & Rescue Service | The Planning Authority

Fire Protection Development Control & Conservation Manager

Mundells — MU103 North Hertfordshire District Council

Welwyn Garden City P O Box 10613

AL7 1FT Nottingham, NG6 6DW

administration.cfs@hertfordshire.gov.uk planning.control@north-herts.gov.uk

Environmental Health Children, Schools and Families

Environmental Health Manager Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children Board

North Hertfordshire District Council Room 127 County Hall

P O Box 10613 Pegs Lane

Nottingham, NG6 6DW Hertford

env.health@north-herts.gov.uk SG13 8DF
admin.Iscb@hertfordshire.gov.uk

H M Revenues and Customs The Gambling Commission

National Registration Unit Victoria Square House

Portcullis House Victoria Square

21 India Street Birmingham

Glasgow B2 4BP

G2 4PZ info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

nrubetting&gaming@hmrc.gsi.gov.uk

In the event that a premises straddles the boundaries of North Hertfordshire and a
neighbouring authority, the licensing authority of the neighbouring authority also acts as a
responsible authority for that application.

The Council is designated as a responsible authority in addition to its role as the licensing
authority. To ensure that the two roles are undertaken separately and independently of
each other, and to ensure transparency, different officers will undertake each of the
Council’'s roles.

The Council, acting as a responsible authority, will not ordinarily make representations
where other responsible authorities have done so. The council will only ordinarily make
representations where:

e it has evidence that other responsible authorities do not possess

e an application conflicts with this Statement of Principles or the Commission’s
Guidance
it can assist with the wording of licence conditions

e it acts on behalf of persons who are not in a position to act for themselves (for
example, persons who have genuine fear of reprisals should they make a
representation and their details and/or evidence become public information)

Page 22


mailto:licensing@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:LicensingEasternArea@herts.pnn.police.uk
file://///srvfp03/userdocs$/scobb/Documents/Policy%20Consultations/Committee%20Stage/administration.cfs@hertfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:planning.control@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:env.health@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:admin.lscb@hertfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:nrubetting&gaming@hmrc.gsi.gov.uk
file://///srvfp03/userdocs$/scobb/Documents/Policy%20Consultations/Committee%20Stage/info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

All.

All.1

All.2

All3

Interested Parties

Interested parties can make representations in support of or against licence applications, or
apply for a review of an existing licence providing the representations are made in writing
(including electronic transmission) and within the prescribed consultation period. The Act
defines interested parties as:

“For the purpose of this Part a person is an interested party in relation to an application for
or in respect of a premises licence if, in the opinion of the licensing authority which issues
the licence or to which the application is made, the person:

(a) lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised
activities;

(b) has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities; or

(© represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b).”

The licensing authority is required by Regulations to state the principles it will apply in
exercising its powers under the Act to determine whether or not a person is an interested
party. The principles to be applied by the Council are:

¢ the Council will not fetter its ability to carefully consider each application on its own
merits by applying any rigid rules to its decision-making

¢ the Council will have regard to the examples of considerations provided in the
Commission’s Guidance at paragraphs 8.9 to 8.17

e the Council will have regard to the Commission’s Guidance that states “has
business interests” should be given the widest possible interpretation. This wide
interpretation allows the Council to consider, where appropriate, organisations such
as, but not limited to, partnerships, charities, schools, residents/tenants
associations, faith groups and medical practices

In determining whether or not a person fives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to
be affected by the licensable activities’ or ‘has business interests that might be affected by
the authorised activities’ the Council may take into account matters such as, but not limited
to:

the size and/or nature of the premises

the nature of the licensable activities being proposed

the distance from the premises of the person making the representation

any special characteristics of the person making the representation (such as special
interests in, or knowledge relating to, the proposed business, premises and/or
licensable activities)

¢ the potential impact of the premises (for example number of likely customers,
customer access routes, etc.)

Page 23



All4

All1.5

All.6

All.7

All.8

All9

Interested parties can be persons who are democratically elected such as councillors and
MP’s. No specific evidence of being asked to represent an interested party will be required
providing that the councillor or MP represents the ward likely to be affected by the
application. It would, however, assist the Council if the elected representative could
demonstrate the number of persons’ opinions that he/she represents. Similarly, parish
councils likely to be affected by an application will be considered to be interested parties.

Other than elected representatives however, the Council will generally require written
evidence that a person/body (for example an advocate, a relative, etc.) represents
someone who either lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the
authorised activities and/or has business interests that might be affected by the authorised
activities. Usually, a letter or email from one of these persons requesting the
representation would be sufficient.

If individuals wish to approach their local district councillor to ask them to represent their
views, then care should be taken that the councillor is not part of the Licensing Sub-
Committee dealing with the application. For most wards in North Hertfordshire, there is
more than one elected representative who could represent the interested party’s views.

Petitions will only be accepted by the Council if:

(@ the full explanation of the reasons for the petition is printed at the top of each page;
(i) the explanation relates to the licensing objectives;

(iii) the petition is received within the prescribed consultation period; and

(iv) each person signing the petition includes their name, address and a signature.

Each entry on a petition will be considered against this criteria and any entry not meeting
the criteria will be excluded.

The Council will only correspond with the person submitting the original petition not with
each individual signatory.

The Council will advise a Licensing Sub-Committee in respect of the weight to apportion to
a petition based on the individual merits of each case.

A11.10The Council will not consider any representation that they deem to be frivolous, vexatious

or that will certainly not influence the determination of the application. The Council will
make its decisions on whether representations fall within these categories objectively and
not on the basis of any political judgement. Where representations are rejected, the person
making the representation will be given a reason for the rejection in writing.

Al11.11The Council gives the term ‘vexatious’ its ordinary meaning as being repetitive, without

foundation, or made for some other non relevant reason such as malice, vindictiveness or
business competiveness. The Council may consider a representation vexatious for reasons
such as, but not limited to:

Page 24



disputes between local businesses

e attempts to protect business by making representations against competitors

e the intention to cause aggravation or annoyance without reasonable cause or
justification

¢ making the same or similar representation repeatedly without reasonable cause or
justification (in effect, re-visiting the consideration of a previous representation
where the person making the representation was not satisfied with the previous
decision)

Al11.12The Council gives the term ‘frivolous’ its ordinary meaning. It may consider a representation
frivolous for reasons such as, but not limited to:

a lack of seriousness

concerns raised are minor at most

no remedial steps would be necessary or proportionate

not related to the licensing objectives, the Commission’s Guidance or this Statement
of Licensing Principles

A11.13The Council defines a representation as one that will ‘certainly not influence the
determination of the application’ as one relating to issues that the Council cannot consider
such as, but not limited to:

¢ demand or need for gambling facilities
¢ moral objections to gambling

Al11.14The Council suggests that representations should:

¢ be made in writing (hard copy or electronic submissions)
indicate the name and address of the person or organisation making the
representation (if representing other persons, state the names and addresses of
those represented)
indicate the premises to which the representation refers

¢ indicate the proximity of the premises to the person making the representation
(including any likely customer travel routes)

e clearly state the reasons for the representation and the relevant licensing
objective(s)

Al12. Exchange of information

Al12.1 Licensing authorities are required to include in their Statement of Principles the principles
that the authority will apply in exercising its functions under sections 29 and 30 of the Act
with respect to the exchange of information between it and the Gambling Commission. It is
also required to include the principles it will apply in exercising its functions under section
350 of the Act with respect to the exchange of information between it and other persons
listed in Schedule 6 of the Act.

Page 25



Al2.2

Al12.3

Al2.4

Al3.

Al13.1

Al13.2

Al13.3

The principles applied by the Council are that:

0] it will act in accordance with the provisions of the Act;

(i) the Data Protection Act 1998 and General Data Protection Regulation 2016/679 will
not be contravened,;

(iii) it will have regard to any Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission; and

(iv) it will have regard to any relevant regulations issued by the Secretary of State under
the powers provided in the Act.

The Council may exercise its powers under section 115 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to exchange data and information with the police and other partner agencies in order to fulfil
its statutory responsibility of reducing crime in North Hertfordshire.

Details of applications and representations which are referred to a Licensing Sub-
Committee for determination will be published in reports that are made publicly available in
accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 and the Freedom of Information Act 2000.
Personal details (names and full addresses) of persons making representations will be
disclosed to applicants and will only be withheld from publicly available reports in
exceptional circumstances on the grounds of personal safety. Email addresses and
telephone numbers will not be disclosed to the applicant or published in publicly available
reports.

Enforcement and Compliance

Licensing authorities are required by regulation under the Act to state the principles to be
applied by the authority in exercising its functions under Part 15 of the Act in respect of the
inspection of premises. It is also required to state the principles to be applied in exercising
its powers under section 346 of the Act with regard to instituting criminal proceedings in
respect of specified offences.

The principles applied by the Council are that it will have regard to the Commission’s
Guidance and will endeavour to be:

e Proportionate Remedies will be necessary and appropriate to the risk
posed, having regard to the costs involved which will be
identified and minimised.

e Accountable Decisions will be justifiable and withstand public scrutiny.
e Consistent Rules and standards will be joined up and fairly implemented.
e Transparent Decisions will be made openly and regulations/licence

conditions will be kept simple and user-friendly.

Targeted Regulation will be focused on the specific problem with
unintended side-effects minimised.

In considering its responsibilities for enforcement action, the Council will also have regard
to its Corporate Enforcement Policy which is available on the Council’'s website www.north-

herts.gov.uk

Page 26


file://///srvfp03/userdocs$/scobb/Documents/Policy%20Consultations/Gambling%20Policy%202019/Consultation/www.north-herts.gov.uk
file://///srvfp03/userdocs$/scobb/Documents/Policy%20Consultations/Gambling%20Policy%202019/Consultation/www.north-herts.gov.uk

Al3.4

A13.5

Al13.6

Al13.7

Al4.

Al4.1

In accordance with the Commission’s Guidance, the Council will endeavour to avoid
duplication with other regulatory requirements. That said, where the Council becomes
aware of matters relating to other statutory agencies they are likely to bring them to the
appropriate agency’s attention.

The Council has adopted and implemented a risk-based inspection programme based on
the licensing objectives, relevant codes of practice, the Commission’s Guidance and this
Statement of Principles.

The Council’s main enforcement and compliance role in terms of the Act is to ensure
compliance with the premises licences and other permissions which it authorises. The
Gambling Commission is the enforcement body for operating and personal licences.
Concerns regarding the manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines should be
notified to the Gambling Commission.

Risk assessments required under the Gambling Commission’s Social Responsibility Code
(see section A2.8) will form part of the licensing authority’s inspection regime and may be
requested when authorised officers are investigating allegations involving activities at or
associated with the premises.

Licensing authority functions
The Act requires licensing authorities to:

o be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are to take
place by issuing premises licences

e issue provisional statements

¢ regulate members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes who wish to undertake
certain gaming activities by issuing club gaming permits and/or club gaming
machine permits

e issue club gaming machine permits to commercial clubs

e grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines at unlicensed
family entertainment centres

e receive notifications from premises licensed for the sale of alcohol under the
Licensing Act 2003 for the use of two or fewer gaming machines

e issue licensed premises gaming machine permits for premises licensed under the

Licensing Act 2003 to sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed premises,

where there are more than two gaming machines

register small society lotteries below the prescribed thresholds

iSsue prize gaming permits

receive and endorse temporary use notices

receive occasional use notices

provide information to the Gambling Commission in respect of details of licences

issued

maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued using these functions

e exercise its powers of compliance and enforcement under the Act in partnership
with the Gambling Commission and other relevant responsible authorities

Page 27



Al14.2 For the avoidance of any doubt, licensing authorities are not involved with the licensing of
remote gambling which is regulated by the Gambling Commission.

PART B: GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

B1. General Principles

B1.1 Premises licences are subject to the requirements prescribed in the Act and regulations
issued thereunder. The Secretary of State has also issued regulations detailing specific
mandatory and default conditions that apply to premises licences. Licensing authorities are
able to exclude default conditions and also attach others, where it is believed to be
appropriate.

B1.2 In order to assist with promoting the licensing objectives, the Council will establish a close
working relationship, where appropriate, with the responsible authorities, in particular
Hertfordshire Constabulary and the Gambling Commission.

B1.3 All applications will be considered on their own individual merit with due consideration of
the specific locality of the premises and the likely impact on the licensing objectives. The
Council will regulate gambling in the public interest, the same principle applied by the
Gambling Commission.

B1.4 Where young persons and other vulnerable persons are allowed access to premises
providing gambling opportunities, the Council will take whatever steps it considers
necessary, when relevant representations are received, to prevent them being at risk of
physical, moral or psychological harm from gambling. Applicants are encouraged to
propose their own restrictions on access to young and other vulnerable persons where
there is a perceived risk.

B1.5 In order to demonstrate to the licensing authority that applicants have fully considered the
impact of their application on the locality and the licensing objectives, the licensing authority
expects applicants to supply a comprehensive Local Area Risk Assessment (LARA) with all
applications. The licensing authority acknowledges that a comprehensive, well-reasoned
LARA may negate the need for licence conditions to address perceived problems where the
perceptions have been satisfactorily assessed within the LARA.

B2. Definition of ‘premises’

B2.1 Inthe Act, premises are defined as including ‘any place’. By virtue of section 152 of the
Act, only one premises licence can apply to any place.

B2.2 A single building could be subject to more than one premises licence, however, providing
that they are for different parts of the building and the different parts of the building can be
reasonably regarded as being different premises. The Council is aware that this approach
has been taken by other licensing authorities to allow large multiple use premises, such as
piers or shopping centres, to obtain separate premises licences for individual units. In
making its decisions in relation to the sub-division of a single building, the Council will
ensure that the mandatory conditions in relation to access to and between premises are
observed.

Page 28



B2.3

B2.4

B2.5

The Gambling Commission states in the fifth edition of its Guidance to Licensing Authorities
(September 2015) at paragraphs 7.5 and 7.6 that:

7.5

In the Act, ‘premises’ is defined as including ‘any place’. S.152 therefore prevents more
than one premises licence applying to any place. But, there is no reason in principle why a
single building could not be subject to more than one premises licence, provided they are
for different parts of the building, and the different parts of the building can reasonably be
regarded as being different premises. This approach has been taken to allow large, multiple
unit premises such as pleasure parks, tracks, or shopping malls to obtain discrete premises
licences, where appropriate safeguards are in place. However, licensing authorities should
pay particular attention if there are issues about sub-division of a single building or plot and
should ensure that mandatory conditions relating to access between premises are
observed.

7.6

In most cases the expectation is that a single building/plot will be the subject of an
application for a licence, for example, 32 High Street. But that does not mean that 32 High
Street cannot be the subject of separate premises licences for the basement and ground
floor, if they are configured acceptably. Whether different parts of a building can properly be
regarded as being separate premises will depend on the circumstances. The location of the
premises will clearly be an important consideration and the suitability of the division is likely
to be a matter for discussion between the operator and the licensing authority.

The Council is aware of the statement in the Commission’s Guidance that licensing
authorities should take particular care in considering applications for multiple licences for a
building and those relating to a discrete part of a building used for other non-gambling
purposes. In particular, the Council is aware that:

0] the third licensing objective seeks to protect children from being harmed by
gambling. In practice, this means not only preventing them from taking part in
gambling but also preventing them from being in close proximity to gambling.
Premises should be configured so that children are not invited to participate in, have
accidental access to, or be able to closely observe gambling where they are
prohibited from participation.

(i) entrances to and exits from parts of a building covered by one or more premises
licences should be separate and identifiable so that the separation of different
premises is not compromised and people do not drift into a gambling area. In this
context, it should normally be possible to access the premises without going through
another licensed premises or premises with a permit.

(iii) customers should be able to participate in the activity named on the premises
licence.

The Council supports the view that a single premises can be sub-divided into separate
premises providing that the licensing objectives are met and the mandatory conditions are
strictly observed. Each application will be considered on its own merits and the discussions
between the licensing officer and operator relating to the suitability of the sub-division are
an essential part of this process. The Council will have regard to the Commission’s
Guidance on this issue.

Page 29



B3.

B3.1

B3.2

B3.3

B3.4

B4.

B4.1

B4.2

B4.3

Premises ‘ready for gambling’

The Commission’s Guidance states that a licence to use premises for gambling should only
be issued in relation to premises that the licensing authority can be satisfied are going to be
ready to be used for gambling in the reasonably near future, consistent with the scale of
building works or alterations required before the premises are brought into use.

If the construction of a premises is not yet complete, or if they need alteration, or if the
applicant does not yet have a right to occupy them, then an application for a provisional
statement should be made instead.

In deciding whether a premises licence can be granted where there are outstanding
construction or alteration works at a premises the Council will determine applications on
their own merits, applying a two-stage consideration process:

0] firstly, whether the premises ought to be permitted to be used for gambling; and

(i) secondly, whether appropriate conditions can be put in place to cater for the
situation that the premises are not yet in the state in which they ought to be before
gambling takes place.

Applicants should note that whilst the Council is entitled to decide that it is appropriate to
grant a licence subject to conditions, it is not obliged to grant such a licence.

Location

The Council is fully aware that demand issues cannot be considered in respect of the
location of proposed premises but that considerations in terms of the licensing objectives
are relevant to its decision making.

In accordance with the Commission’s Guidance, the Council will pay particular attention to
the protection of children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by
gambling, as well as issues of crime and disorder.

The Council has no specific policy of excluding gambling premises from certain locations
and has no current plans to implement such a policy. Each application will be determined
on its own merits with the onus upon the applicant to demonstrate how any potential
concerns can be overcome.

Page 30



B5.

B5.1

B5.2

B6.

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

Planning
The Commission’s Guidance states at paragraph 7.58:

“In determining applications, the licensing authority should not take into consideration
matters that are not related to gambling and the licensing objectives. One example would
be the likelihood of the applicant obtaining planning permission or building regulations
approval for their proposal. Licensing authorities should bear in mind that a premises
licence, once it comes into effect, authorises premises to be used for gambling.
Accordingly, a licence to use premises for gambling should only be issued in relation to
premises that the licensing authority can be satisfied are going to be ready to be used for
gambling in the reasonably near future, consistent with the scale of building or alterations
required before the premises are brought into use ...... ”

The Council will not take into account planning or other irrelevant matters in accordance
with the above Guidance.

Additionally, the Council will have regard to paragraph 7.65 of the Commission’s Guidance
which states:

“When dealing with a premises licence application for finished buildings, the licensing
authority should not take into account whether those buildings have to comply with the
necessary planning or building consents. Nor should fire or health and safety risks be taken
into account. Those matters should be dealt with under relevant planning control, building
and other regulations, and must not form part of the consideration for the premises licence.
Section 210 of the Act prevents licensing authorities taking into account the likelihood of the
proposal by the applicant obtaining planning or building consent when considering a
premises licence application. Equally the grant of a gambling premises licence does not
prejudice or prevent any action that may be appropriate under the law relating to planning
or building.”

Duplication with other regulatory regimes

The Council will seek to avoid any duplication with other statutory/regulatory systems
wherever possible. On occasions, however, it may be the case that duplication is
necessary to ensure compliance with the licensing objectives and/or mandatory conditions.

The Council will not consider whether or not a licence application is likely to be awarded
planning permission or building regulations approval in its determination. It will, however,
listen to, and carefully consider, any concerns about conditions which are not able to be
met by licensees due to planning restrictions, should this situation arise.

When dealing with a premises licence application for finished buildings, the Council will not
take into account whether the building has to comply with any planning or building consent.
Equally the Council will not consider fire or health and safety issues as these matters are
dealt with under separate legislation.

Page 31



B7.

B7.1

B7.2

Licensing objectives

In order to grant a premises licence, the application must be reasonably consistent with the
licensing objectives. The Council has considered the Commission’s Guidance with regard
to these objectives and would comment as follows.

Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder, being associated with
crime or disorder, or being used to support crime

B7.2.1 Anyone applying to the Council for a premises licence (with the exception of track betting)

will have to hold an operating licence issued by the Gambling Commission before a licence
can be granted. The Gambling Commission play a leading role in preventing gambling from
being linked to crime through a series of stringent licensing procedures aimed at preventing
criminals from providing or benefitting from gambling facilities. For that reason, the Council
will not ordinarily consider the applicant’s suitability but are likely to raise any concerns in
that respect directly with the Gambling Commission.

B7.2.2 The Commission’s Guidance does, however, envisage that licensing authorities should pay

particular attention to the proposed location of gambling premises in terms of this licensing
objective. Where an area is known for links to organised crime, the Council will carefully
consider whether gambling premises are suitable to be located there and if so, whether
there may be any suitable conditions, such as the provision of door supervisors, to prevent
the premises from being linked to crime. The Council will work closely with the police in
relation to any issues linked to organised crime and give appropriate weight to any
representations made.

B7.2.3 The Council is aware of the distinction between disorder and nuisance and will consider

B7.3

appropriate factors (for example, whether police assistance was required and how
threatening the behaviour was to those who could see it) so as to make that distinction.
There are other existing legislative powers to deal with anti-social behaviour and nuisance
and the Council will not consider matters such as parking issues or noise from the premises
which can be dealt with using other powers. That said, if issues of disorder amount to
activity that is more serious and disruptive than nuisance and it can be shown that gambling
is the source of that disorder the Council will consider these issues as part of the licensing
process.

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way

B7.3.1 The Council acknowledges that the Gambling Commission does not ordinarily expect

licensing authorities to be concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and
open way as this will be regulated by means of operating and personal licences which are
the responsibility of the Gambling Commission.

B7.3.2 Where the Council has any concerns in relation to the management of a gambling business

(relevant to operating licences) or in relation to the suitability and actions of an individual
with responsibility for a business (relevant to personal licences) it will bring those concerns
to the attention of the Gambling Commission.

Page 32



B7.3.3 The Council is aware that there is likely to be more of a role for the local authority in relation
to a premises licence for a track because betting track operators do not need an operating
licence from the Gambling Commission. Depending on the individual circumstances of the
application the Council may impose licence conditions relating to the suitability of the
environment in which betting takes place.

B7.4 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by
gambling

B7.4.1 The Council has noted the Commission’s Guidance that states this objective means
preventing children from taking part in gambling, as well as restricting advertising so that
gambling products are not aimed at or are particularly attractive to children. Apart from
limited exceptions, children and young persons should be prevented from entering
gambling premises; where access is permitted there should be sufficient measures to
ensure that persons under eighteen (18) years of age do not have access to adult gaming
machine areas.

B7.4.2 The Council will expect applicants to take steps to prevent children and other vulnerable
persons from taking part in, or being in close proximity to, gambling especially in areas with
high rates of truancy and/or unemployment. Where applicants do not offer suitable controls
in relation to this licensing objective the Council is likely to impose conditions addressing
any concerns raised in representations.

B7.4.3 Consideration will be given as to whether specific measures are required at particular
premises in respect of this licensing objective. In addressing this objective, the Council may
consider imposing conditions in relation to issues such as, but not limited to:

closed circuit television (CCTV) systems

door supervisors

proof of age schemes

supervision of entrances and/or adult gaming machine areas
physical separation of areas

location of entry points

signage

restricted opening times

provision of information leaflets/telephone numbers for organisations such as
GamCare

o staff training in respect of customer vulnerability

Applicants should be aware that this list is neither mandatory nor exhaustive and that each
application will be considered on its own individual merits.

B7.4.4 When considering whether specific measure are necessary to protect children and other

vulnerable persons the Council will balance its considerations against the overall principle
of permitting the use of premises for gambling.

Page 33



B7.4.5 The Council is aware that the Gambling Commission does not seek to offer a definition of
the term ‘vulnerable person’ but states that:

“it will for regulatory purposes assume that this group includes people who gamble more
than they want to; people who gamble beyond their means; and people who may not be
able to make informed or balance decisions about gambling due to a mental impairment,
alcohol or drugs”.

The Council will consider the definition of vulnerable person on a case by case basis with
regard to the individual circumstances of each application.

B8. Licence conditions

B8.1 Mandatory conditions

B8.1.1 Mandatory conditions may be attached to premises licences by the Secretary of State
under section 167 of the Act. They can either be attached generally to all premises
licences, to all premises licences of a specific type, or to a specific type of premises licence
under certain circumstances.

B8.1.2 The Council are aware that once mandatory conditions are attached to a premises licence
they can only be removed by further regulations from the Secretary of State; the Council
has no discretion to decide not to include them or to modify them.

B8.2 Default conditions

B8.2.1 The Secretary of State has a further power under section 168 of the Act to specify default
licence conditions that may be attached to premises licences. Default conditions are most
appropriate where the Secretary of State considers a general industry or sector wide
approach is desirable in order to assist with national consistency but where licensing
authorities have discretion to respond to local circumstances where necessary.

B8.2.2 The Council is aware that section 169 of the Act gives licensing authorities the ability to
exclude any default condition imposed under section 168 from a premises licence. As
default conditions are considered to be the national industry standard, the Council will only
remove them where appropriate having regard to any Codes of Practice and/or Guidance
issued by the Gambling Commission, the licensing objectives and this Statement of
Principles.

B8.2.3 The Council expects applicants seeking to remove or amend default conditions to
demonstrate that there will be no risk to the licensing objectives or this Statement of
Principles if any conditions are removed or amended.

B8.3 Conditions attached by the Council

B8.3.1 The Council is aware that there are conditions which a licensing authority cannot attach to
premises licences, which are:

Page 34



e any condition on the premises licence which makes it impossible to comply with an
operating licence condition
conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of operation
e conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required
conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning or prizes.

B8.3.2 Any conditions attached to premises licences the Council will be proportionate and:

¢ relevant to the need to ensure the premises are suitable to provide gambling
facilities

o directly related to the premises (including the locality and any identifiable local risks)
and the type of licence applied for
fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises

e reasonable in all other aspects

B8.3.3 All decisions relating to the attaching of conditions will made on a case by case basis in
relation to the individual merits of the application. The Council will expect the applicant to
offer his/her own suggestions as to the way in which the licensing objectives can be met
effectively. The Council may, however, exclude a condition and/or substitute it with one that
is either more or less restrictive; in such cases, the Council will give clear and regulatory
reasons for their decision.

B8.3.4 The Council may also consider specific measures which may be required for buildings
which are sub-divided and subject to more than one premises licence. Such measures may
include, but are not limited to:

e supervision of entrances and/or gaming machine areas
e segregation of different premises
e segregation of non-gambling areas frequented by children from gambling areas

B8.3.5 The Council will ensure that where category C or above gaming machines are made
available in premises to which children are admitted:

¢ all such machines are located in an area of the premises which is separated from
the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent
access other than through a designated entrance

e only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located

e access to the area where the machines are located is supervised to ensure children
are denied access

e the area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can be observed
by the staff or the licence holder, either within direct line of sight or by monitoring
closed-circuit television

e atthe entrance to and inside any such areas, there are prominently displayed
notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to any person less than
eighteen (18) years of age.

Page 35



B8.3.6 The Council is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more premises licence provided

that each licence relates to a specified area of the track. In accordance with the
Commission’s Guidance, the Council will consider the impact upon the third licensing
objective and the need to ensure that entrances to each type of premises are distinct and
that children are excluded from gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter.

B8.4 Door supervisors

B8.4.1 The Commission’s Guidance advises that if a licensing authority is concerned that premises

may attract disorder, may become a source of crime, may be subject to attempts at
unauthorised access by children or young persons, or that it is in an area with other
vulnerable persons then it may require that the entrances to the premises are controlled by
a door supervisor and a licensing authority would be entitled to impose a condition on a
premises licence to this effect.

B8.4.2 The Council is not aware of any evidence that the operation of gambling premises ordinarily

require door supervisors for the protection of the public. A condition requiring door
supervisors will only be attached if there is clear evidence from the history of trading at the
premises that adequate supervision cannot be undertaken by counter staff or there is a
clear risk to the licensing objectives at new premises. Under all circumstances, a condition
requiring door supervision will only be attached where it is both a necessary and
proportionate measure in relation to the licensing objectives.

B8.4.3 Where it is decided to impose a condition requiring door supervision, a consideration of

BO.

B9.1

B9.2

B9.3

whether or not the door supervisors would need to be Security Industry Authority (SIA)
registered should be made. It will not be automatically assumed that door supervisors need
to be licensed as the statutory requirements for different types of premises vary. That said,
the Council is strongly of the view, however, that door supervisors or security staff who are
employed at gambling premises should be licensed by the SIA.

Hearings

A Licensing Sub-Committee hearing will be arranged to deal with any application that
cannot be dealt with under delegated powers or otherwise resolved by agreement between
the applicant and responsible authorities and/or interested parties.

The Licensing Sub-Committee will be convened on the earliest possible date, having regard
to legislative requirements, and will conduct a quasi-judicial consideration of the application
and representations.

The Council may attach conditions to premises licences where relevant representations are
received. Any condition attached to a premises licence must relate to one or more of the
licensing objectives and will not ordinarily relate to matters that are subject to other existing
legislative requirements.

Page 36



B10.

B10.1

B10.2

B10.3

B10.4

B10.5

B10.6

B10.7

Review of licences

Requests for a review of a premises licence can be made by interested parties and/or
responsible authorities however it is for the Council to decide whether or not the review is to
be carried out. This will be decided on the basis of whether the gambling at the premises
is:

e in accordance with any relevant Code of Practice issued by the Gambling
Commission

in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission
putting compliance with the licensing objectives at risk

in accordance with this Statement of Principles

Being carried on in accordance with the conditions attached to the authorisation

The request for the review will also be subject to consideration by the Council as to whether
the request is:

frivolous

vexatious

whether it will certainly not cause the Council to alter/revoke/suspend the licence
whether it is substantially the same as previous representations or requests for
review.

The Council can also initiate a review of a particular premises licence, or a particular class
of premises licence on the basis of any reason which it thinks is appropriate. Consideration
of the need for a review will have regard to the principles set out in section 153 of the
Gambling Act 2005 in respect of reasonable concerns such as, but not limited to, changes
to the locality or complaints received.

Once a valid application for a review has been received by the Council representations can
be made by responsible authorities and interested parties during a twenty-eight day period
beginning seven days after the application was received by the Council who will publish a
notice of the application within seven days of receipt.

The Council will carry out the review as soon as practicable after the twenty-eight day
period for making representations has passed.

The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the Council should take any action
in relation to the licence. If action is necessary, the options available to the Council are:

0] add, remove or amend a licence condition imposed by the licensing authority;

(ii) exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State (for example,
opening hours), or remove or amend such an exclusion;

(iii) suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months; or

(iv) revoke the premises licence.

In determining what action, if any, should be taken following a review, the Council must

have regard to the principles set out in section 153 of the Act, as well as any relevant
representations.

Page 37



B10.8

B10.9

B11.

B11.1.

B11.2

B11.3

B11.4

The Council may also initiate a review of a premises licence on the grounds that a premises
licence holder has not provided facilities for gambling at the premises. This is to prevent
people from applying for licences in a speculative manner without intending to use them.

Once the review has been completed, the Council must, as soon as practicable, notify its
decision to:

the licence holder

the applicant for review and any person who made representations
the Gambling Commission

the Chief Officer of Hertfordshire Constabulary

Her Majesty’s Commissioners for Revenues and Customs

Safeguarding against Child Sexual exploitation (CSE)

The Council acknowledges that CSE awareness doesn’t just apply to children on licensed
premises, particularly as children are not permitted access to most gambling premises.
Applicants should be equally aware of children in the proximity of the premises that may be
waiting for, or seeking, older persons.

Applicants are encouraged to ensure that suitable management controls are in place to
safeguard children against the risk of CSE. Measures may include, but are not limited to:

e awareness training for staff;

e regular patrols of the premises, including external areas and the immediate
proximity, to identify any vulnerable children;
close monitoring of patrons as they leave the premises;

e recording and reporting concerns to the police.

The Council expects applicants to be aware of ‘risk indicators’ of CSE which include, but
are not limited to:

e developing relationships between a child and an older person

e children in the company of a group of older persons

e children regularly attending premises and meeting with a number of different older
persons, particularly where older persons may be facilitating gambling for children

o children outside of licensed premises developing relationships with an older person,
particularly an older person facilitating gambling for children

e children leaving the locality of the premises with older persons, particularly with a
group of older persons

o children looking uncomfortable in the company of, or leaving with, older persons,
particularly groups of older persons

Whilst the Council does not wish to create the impression that all contact between children
and older persons is inappropriate, it is strongly of the view that licence holders should be
aware of the risks of CSE and should proactively manage their premises to minimise the
risks.

Page 38



B11.5 The Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children Board (HSCB) have dual role in respect of
preventing CSE within licensed premises. The HSCB is a responsible authority under the
Act having been nominated by the Council to undertake this function. The HSCB also
monitor compliance with the statutory requirements under section 11 of the Children Act
2004 to safeguard and promote the welfare of children. Applicants are encouraged to visit
the HSCB website for advice www.hertssafeguarding.org.uk

B11.6 The Council expects applicants to demonstrate the measures they will take to safeguard
against CSE in the local risk assessment.

PART C: PREMISES LICENCES APPLICATIONS

Cl. Adult Gaming Centres (AGC)

Cl1.1 The Council will have specific regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable persons
from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the
authority that there will be sufficient measures to, for example, ensure that under eighteen
year olds do not have access to the premises.

C1.2 The Council may consider measures, where necessary to meet the licensing objectives,
including but not limited to:

proof of age schemes (for example, PASS accredited schemes such as Validate)
CCTV

supervision of entrances and/or gaming machine areas

physical separation of areas

location of entry

notices/signage

specific opening hours

staff training

self-exclusion schemes

provision of information leaflets and/or helpline telephone numbers for organisations
such as GamCare

C2. (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres (FEC)

C2.1 The Council will have specific regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable persons
from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the
authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under eighteen year olds do
not have access to the adult only gaming machine areas.

C2.2 The Council may consider measures, where necessary to meet the licensing objectives,
including but not limited to:

CCTV

supervision of entrances and/or gaming machine areas
physical separation of areas

location of entry

Page 39


file://///srvfp03/userdocs$/scobb/Documents/Policy%20Consultations/Committee%20Stage/www.hertssafeguarding.org.uk

c2.3

C3.

C31

C4.

C4.1

C4.2

C4.3

ca.4

notices/signage

specific opening hours

self-exclusion schemes

measures/training for staff on how to deal with suspected truant school children on
the premises and similar vulnerable persons training

e provision of information leaflets and/or helpline telephone numbers for organisations
such as GamCare

The Council will have regard to the Gambling Commission’s website in respect of any
conditions, including mandatory and/or default conditions, which apply to operating licences
covering the way in which the area containing the category C machines should be
delineated.

Casinos

The Council has not passed a ‘no casino’ resolution under section 166 of the Act, but is
aware that it has the power to do so. Should the Council decide in the future to pass such
a resolution, it will update this Statement of Principles accordingly.

Bingo premises

The Council are aware that bingo constitutes equal chance gaming and is permitted in
alcohol licensed premises and in clubs under restricted thresholds otherwise it will be
subject to a bingo operating licence administered and regulated by the Gambling
Commission. Premises providing commercial bingo will need a bingo premises licence from
the Council.

Amusement arcades providing prize bingo will need a prize gaming permit from the
Council.

Where children are allowed to enter premises providing bingo under a premises licence or
prize gaming permit, it is important that they are not allowed to participate in any bingo
gaming other than on a category D gaming machine. When considering applications of this
type, the Council will consider matters such as but not limited to:

the location of the games or machines

access to areas providing bingo

supervisory requirements for different parts of the premises

the displaying of suitable notices in relation to age restricted areas and gaming

Where a premises licence permitting bingo exists, gaming machines may be made
available (subject to prescribed limits). Where any gaming machines other than category D
are made available on premises where children are permitted access, the Council will have
seek to ensure that:

(1) all gaming machines other than category D are located in a separated part of the
premises controlled by physical barriers preventing access other than through a
designated entrance point;

(ii) only persons eighteen years of age or above are admitted to the separated gaming
machine area;

Page 40



C45

C4.6

Cs.

Cs.1

C5.2

(iii) the designated entrance point to the gaming machine area is supervised,;

(iv) the gaming machine area is designed and located so that it can be continually
observed by staff employed by the premises licence holder; and

(v) at the entrance to and within the gaming machine area, there are prominent notices
displayed indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons less than
eighteen years of age.

The Council will have regard to paragraph 18.5 of the Commission’s Guidance which
states:

“Licensing authorities need to satisfy themselves that bingo can be played in any bingo
premises for which they issue a premises licence. An operator may choose to vary their
licence to exclude a previously licensed area of that premises, and then apply for a new
premises licence, or multiple new premises licences, with the aim of creating separate
premises in that area. Essentially providing multiple licensed premises within a single
building or site. Before issuing additional bingo premises licences, licensing authorities
need to consider whether bingo can be played at each of those new premises. ”

The Council will also have regard to the Commission’s Guidance at paragraph 18.9
regarding the unusual circumstances in which the splitting of pre-existing premises into two
or more adjacent premises might be permitted; in particular, that it is not permissible for
each individual licensed premises’ machine entitlement to be located together in one of the
licensed premises.

Betting premises

The Council is aware that it has the power to restrict the number of betting machines that
are made available in licensed betting premises. In accordance with the Commission’s
Guidance, the Council will take into account the size of the premises, the number of counter
positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the
use of the machines by children and other vulnerable people when considering the
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines permitted in licensed betting premises.
The Council acknowledges that it cannot restrict the number of gaming machines which is
an automatic entitlement under the Act.

The Council recognises that some of the major betting shop providers have a number of
premises within North Hertfordshire. In order to facilitate early resolution of any emerging
enforcement issues, the Council recommends that operators provide a single point of
contact for enforcement or compliance issues. This person should be of sufficient seniority
within the organisation to ensure that the Council’'s concerns are addressed at the earliest
opportunity.

Page 41



C6. Tracks
C6.1 General

C6.1.1 The Council is aware that tracks (sites where races or other sporting events take place)
may be subject to one or more premises licences, provided each licence relates to
specified area of the track. In accordance with the Commission’s Guidance, the Council
will especially consider the impact upon the third licensing objective (i.e. the protection of
children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling) and the need
to ensure that entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are
excluded from gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter.

C6.1.2 The Council will expect the premises licence applicant to demonstrate suitable measures to
ensure that children do not have access to adult only gaming facilities. It is noted that
children and young persons will be permitted to enter track areas where facilities for betting
are provided on days when dog racing and/or horse racing takes place, but that they are
still prevented from entering areas where gaming machines (other than category D
machines) are provided.

C6.1.3 The Council may consider measures, where necessary to meet the licensing objectives,
including but not limited to:

proof of age schemes (for example, PASS accredited schemes such as Validate)
CCTV

supervision of entrances and/or gaming machine areas

physical separation of areas

location of entry

notices/signage

specific opening hours

self-exclusion schemes

provision of information leaflets and/or helpline telephone numbers for organisations
such as GamCare

C6.1.4 The Council are aware that tracks are different from other licensed premises in so far that
the track operator may not be required to hold an operating licence from the Gambling
Commission as there may be several premises licence holders at the track each of whom
will need to hold their own operating licence. The Council will have regard to any Guidance
issued by the Gambling Commission in this respect

C6.1.5 The Council is of the view that it would be preferable for all self-contained premises at a
track operated by a betting operator to be subject to a separate premises licence. This
would ensure clarity between the responsibilities of the track operator and the individual
betting operators on the track.

C6.1.6 The Council will attach a condition to track betting premises licences requiring the track
operator to ensure that the betting rules are predominately displayed in or near each betting
area, or that other measures are taken to ensure that they are made available to the public
such as being printed in the race card.

Page 42



C6.2

Gaming machines

C6.2.1 Where the applicant holds a pool betting operating licence and is going to use the

entitlement to four gaming machines, machines (other than category D machines) should
be located in areas from which children are excluded.

C6.2.2 The Council are aware that it has a power to restrict the number of betting machines at a

C6.3

track. In accordance with the Commission’s Guidance, the Council will take into account the
size of the premises and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children
and young persons, or vulnerable people, when considering the
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator proposes to offer.

Applications and plans

C6.3.1 The Act requires applicants to submit plans of the premises with their application, in order

to ensure that the Council has the necessary information to make an informed judgement
about whether the premises are fit for gambling. The plan will also be used for the Council
to plan future premises inspection activity. Plans for tracks do not need to be in a particular
scale, but the Council requires them to be drawn to scale and should be sufficiently detailed
to include the information required by Regulations.

C6.3.2 Some tracks may be situated on agricultural land where the perimeter is not defined by

virtue of an outer wall or fence, such as point-to-point racetracks. In such instances, where
an entry fee is levied, track premises licence holders may erect temporary structures to
restrict access to premises. In the rare cases where the outer perimeter cannot be defined,
it is likely that the track in question will not be designed for the frequent holding of sporting
events or races. In such cases, betting facilities may be better provided through occasional
use notices where the boundary of the premises does not need to be defined.

C6.3.3 The Council appreciates that it is sometimes difficult to define the precise location of betting

C7.

C7.1

C7.2

areas on tracks. The precise location of where betting facilities are provided is not required
to be shown on track plans, both by virtue of the fact that betting is permitted anywhere on
the premises and because of the difficulties associated with pinpointing exact locations for
some types of track. Applicants should provide sufficient information so that the Council
can satisfy itself that the plan indicates the main areas where betting might take place.

Travelling Fairs

Where category D machines and/or equal chance prize gaming without a permit is to be
made available for use at travelling fairs, the Council is responsible for deciding whether the
statutory requirement is met that the facilities for gambling amount to no more than ancillary
amusement at the fair. The Council will also consider whether the applicant falls within the
statutory definition of a travelling fair.

The Council is aware that the twenty-seven day statutory maximum period for land being
used as a fair applies on a per calendar year basis and that it applies to the piece of land
on which the fairs are held, regardless of whether it is the same or different travelling fairs
occupying the land. Where fairs are held on land which crosses our boundaries, the
council will work with neighbouring authorities to ensure that statutory limits are not
exceeded.

Page 43



Cs. Provisional Statements

C8.1 The Council encourages developers to apply for provisional statements before entering into
contracts to buy or lease property or land to judge whether a development is worth taking
forward in light of the need to obtain a premises licence. There is no requirement for the
applicant to hold an operating licence (except in the case of a track) or a right to occupy the
land in order to apply for a provisional statement. Section 204 of the Act provides for a
person to make an application to the Council for a provisional statement in respect of
premises that he or she:

() expects to be constructed;
(i) expects to be altered; or
(iii) expects to acquire a right to occupy

C8.2 The process for considering an application for a provisional statement is the same as that
for a premises licence application. The applicant must give notice of the application in the
same way as applying for a premises licence; responsible authorities and interested parties
may make representations and there are rights of appeal. The holder of a provisional
statement may then apply for a premises licence once the premises are constructed,
altered or acquired. The Council will be constrained in the matters it can consider when
determining the premises licence application and, in terms of representations about
premises licence applications that follow the grant of a provisional statement, no further
representations from responsible authorities or interested parties can be taken into account
unless:

0] they concern matters which could not have been addressed at the provisional
statement stage; or
(i) they reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances.

C8.3 The Council is aware that it may refuse the subsequent premises licence, or grant it on
terms different to those attached to the provisional statement, only by reference to matters:

0] which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional statement stage;

(ii) which in the Council’s opinion reflect a change in the operator’s circumstances; or

(iii) where the premises have not been constructed in accordance with the plan
submitted with the application. The Council acknowledges that this must be a
substantial change to the plan and it may discuss any concerns it has with the
applicant before making a decision.

PART D: PERMITS, TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES

D1. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits (UFEC)

D1.1 Where a premises does not hold a premises licence but wishes to provide gaming
machines, it may apply to the Council for this permit. It should be noted that the applicant
must show that the premises will be wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines
available for use; other usage is likely to result in the application being refused.

Page 44



D1.2

D1.3

D1.4

D1.5

The Act states that a licensing authority may prepare a Statement of Principles that they
propose to consider in determining the suitability of an applicant for a permit and in
preparing this statement, and/or considering applications, it need not (but may) have regard
to the licensing objectives and shall have regard to any relevant guidance issued by the
Gambling Commission under section 25 of the Act. The Commission's Guidance states at
paragraph 24.8:

“In its statement of policy, a licensing authority may include a statement of principles that it
proposes to apply when exercising its functions in considering applications for permits. In
particular it may want to set out the matters that it will take into account in determining the
suitability of the applicant. Given that the premises is likely to appeal particularly to children
and young persons, licensing authorities may wish to give weight to matters relating to
protection of children from being harmed or exploited by gambling and to ensure that staff
supervision adequately reflects the level of risk to this group. Licensing authorities are also
encouraged to also specify in their statement of policy that a plan for the uFEC must be
submitted. “

The Commission's Guidance states at paragraph 24.9:

“The licensing authority can grant or refuse an application for a permit, but cannot add
conditions. An application for a permit may be granted only if the licensing authority is
satisfied that the premises will be used as an unlicensed FEC, and if the chief officer of
police has been consulted on the application..... The licensing authority may also consider
asking applicants to demonstrate:

e a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that is
permissible in unlicensed FEC’s

¢ that the applicant has no relevant convictions (those that are set out in Schedule 7
of the Act)

o that employees are trained to have a full understanding of the maximum stakes and
prizes”

The Council will have regard to this paragraph of the Commission’s Guidance to ensure
that it is satisfied as to the applicant’s suitability before granting a permit.

The Council expects the applicant to show that there are policies and procedures in place
to protect children from harm. Harm in this context is not limited to harm from gambling but
includes wider child protection considerations. The efficiency of such policies and
procedures will each be considered on their own merits, however, they may include
appropriate measures such as but not limited to:

e training for staff as regards suspected truant school children on the premises
e training covering how staff would deal with unsupervised very young children being
on the premises or children causing perceived problems on/around the premises
e background checks on staff
The Council expects applicants to demonstrate:

e a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes in relation to gambling that is
permitted in unlicensed FECs

Page 45



D1.6

D1.7

D1.8

D2.

D2.1

211

212

that the applicant has no relevant convictions as defined within the Act

e that staff are suitably trained and have a full understanding of the maximum stakes
and prizes

e an awareness of local educational establishments” holiday times
an awareness of how to notify the local education authority of any truants

Compliance with the Code of Practice for FECs issued by the British Amusement Catering
Association (BACTA), or any similar trade association codes, may be accepted by the
Council as evidence that, save for the criminal convictions criteria, the applicant has met
the requirements of paragraph D1.5.

Applicants must submit with their application a plan of the premises to a scale of 1:100,

showing the entrances/exits to the premises, location of gaming machines, and the location

of safety equipment such as fire fighting equipment.

The Council may refuse an application for renewal of a permit only on the grounds that:

0] an authorised officer of the Council has been refused access to the premises
without reasonable excuse, or

(i) renewal would not be reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the licensing
objectives

(Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits

Automatic entitlement to two machines

The Act provides for premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on the premises to
have an automatic entitlement to two gaming machines of categories C and/or D. The
premises merely need to notify the Council of their intention to utilise this entitlement.

Under section 284 of the Act, the Council can remove the automatic entitlement in respect
of any particular premises if:

0] provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the
licensing objectives;

(ii) gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of section 282 of
the Act;

(iii) the premises are mainly used for gaming; or

(iv) an offence under the Act has been committed on the premises.

Should the Council deem it necessary to remove the automatic entitlement, the licence
holder will be given a minimum of twenty-one days notice of the intention to make the
section 284 Order. Before making the Order, the Council will consider any representations
received and hold a hearing if requested by the licence holder.

Page 46



D2.2 Permit for three or more machines

D2.2.1 If a premises wishes to have more than two machines, it needs to apply for a permit and
the Council must consider that application based upon the licensing objectives, any
guidance issued by the Gambling Commission under section 25 of the Gambling Act 2005,
and ‘such matters as they think relevant’.

D2.2.2 The Council considers that ‘such matters as they think relevant’ will be decided on a case
by case basis but generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling and will expect the
applicant to satisfy the Council that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under
eighteen year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machines. The Council
may consider whether access to children to the premises is restricted by way of the
Licensing Act 2003.

D2.2.3 Measures which will satisfy the Council that there will be no access may include the gaming
machines being in sight of the bar counter, or in the sight of staff who monitor that the
machines are not being used by those persons under eighteen years of age. Notices and
signage may also be of assistance. In respect of the protection of vulnerable persons,
applicants may wish to consider the provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for
organisations such as GamCare.

D2.2.4 The Council expects an application to be accompanied by a plan indicating what type of
gaming machines are to be provided and where they are to be located. In the absence of a
plan, the Council may choose to defer the application until such time as a plan is received.

D2.2.5 The Council recognises that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a permit for
their non-alcohol licensed areas. Any such application would need to be applied for and
dealt with as an adult gaming centre premises licence.

D2.2.6 Applicants should be aware that the Council can decide to grant the application with a
smaller number of machines and/or a different machine category than that applied for;
however, conditions cannot be attached to a permit.

D2.2.7 It should also be noted that the holder of a permit must comply with any Code of Practice
issued by the Gambling Commission in respect of the location and/or operation of the
machines.

D3. Prize Gaming Permits

D3.1 Prize gaming may be provided in licensed bingo premises as an entitlement of their bingo
operating licence. Any type of prize gaming may be provided in licensed adult gaming
centres and licensed family entertainment centres. Unlicensed family entertainment centres
may offer equal chance prize gaming under a gaming machine permit. Prize gaming
without a permit may be provided by travelling fairs providing that none of the gambling
facilities at the fair amount to more than an ancillary amusement. Children and young
persons may participate in equal chance gaming only.

Page 47



D3.2

D3.3

D3.4

D3.5

D3.6

The Act states that a licensing authority may prepare a statement of principles that they
propose to apply in exercising their functions which ‘may, in particular, specify matters that
the licensing authority proposes to consider in determining the suitability of the applicant for
a permit.’

The Council considers that such matters will be decided on a case by case basis but
ordinarily there will be regard to the need to protect children and other vulnerable persons
from harm or being exploited by gambling. The applicant should set out the types of gaming
that he/she is intending to offer and should be able to demonstrate that:

() they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in the Regulations;

(i) the gaming offered is within the law; and

(iii) they have clear and robust policies that outline the steps to be taken to protect
children and other vulnerable persons from harm.

In making its decision on an application for this permit, the Council does not need to, but
may, have regard to the licensing objectives, but must have regard to the Commission's
Guidance.

The Council expects the application to be accompanied by a plan indicating what types of
prize gaming is to be provided and where it is to be provided on the premises. In the
absence of a plan, the Council may choose to defer the application until such time as a plan
is received.

Applicants should be aware that there are conditions prescribed in the Act with which the
permit holder must comply but that the Council cannot attach other conditions. The
conditions prescribed by the Act are:

(@ the limits on participation fees, as defined in Regulations, must be complied with;
(i) all chances to participate in the gaming:
e must be allocated on the premises on which the gaming is taking place and

on one day

¢ the game must be played and completed on the day the chances are
allocated

¢ the result of the game must be made public in the premises on the day that it
is played:;

(iii) the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount prescribed in
Regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if a non-monetary prize);
and

(iv) participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other
gambling.

Applications may only be made by persons who occupy or plan to occupy the premises, are

aged eighteen years or over and where no premises licence or club gaming permit under
the Act are in force.

Page 48



D4. Club Gaming and Club Gaming Machine Permits

D4.1 Members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes, but not commercial clubs, may apply for a
Club Gaming Permit. The Club Gaming Permit will enable the premises to provide a
maximum of three gaming machines (categories B, C or D), equal chance gaming and
games of chance as prescribed in Regulations.

Members clubs, miners’ welfare institutes and commercial clubs may apply for a Club
Gaming Machine Permit. A Club Gaming Machine Permit will enable the premises to
provide a maximum of three gaming machines (categories B, C or D), however, commercial
clubs may not site category B3A gaming machines offering lottery games in their club.

D4.2 Members’ clubs

D4.2.1 A members’ club is a club that is not established as a commercial enterprise and is
conducted for the benefit of its members. They must be established and conducted wholly
or mainly for purposes other than gaming (other than bridge and whist), permanent in
nature and consist of a minimum of twenty-five members. There is no requirement for a
club to have an alcohol licence. Examples include but are not limited to:

e working men'’s clubs
e Dbranches of the Royal British Legion
o clubs with political affiliations

D4.3 Miners’ welfare institutes

D4.3.1 A miners’ welfare institute is an association established for recreational or social purposes,
managed by representatives of miners or using premises regulated by a charitable trust
which has received funds from a mining organisation.

D4.4 Commercial clubs

D4.4.1 A commercial club is a club established for commercial gain, irrespective of whether or not
they are making a commercial gain. Examples include but are not limited to:

e snooker clubs
e clubs established as private companies
e clubs established for personal profit

D4.5 The Council will have regard to paragraphs 25.46 — 25.49 inclusive of the Commission’s
Guidance when determining whether a club meets the statutory qualifying requirements.
Matters that may be considered include but are not limited to:

the club’s constitution

frequency of gaming

the club’s primary purpose

arrangements for guests

whether the club’s profits are retained for the benefit of members

Page 49



D4.6

D4.7

D4.8

D5.

D5.1

D5.2

The Council acknowledges that the club must be conducted wholly or mainly for purposes
other than gaming, with the exception of bridge and whist which are covered by separate
regulations.

The Commission's Guidance states that licensing authorities may only refuse an application
on one or more of the following grounds:

() the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members or commercial club or
miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of permit for
which it has applied;

(i) the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young
persons;

(iii) an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the
applicant while providing gaming facilities;

(iv) a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years; or

(V) an objection has been lodged by the Gambling Commission or the Police.

There is also a ‘fast-track’ procedure available under the Act for premises which hold a club
premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003. Under the fast-track procedure there is
no opportunity for objections to be made by the Gambling Commission or the Police and
there are reduced grounds upon which the Council can refuse the application. The grounds
on which an application under this process may be refused are:

0] that the club is established primarily for gaming, other that gaming prescribed under
schedule 12;

(i) that in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for other
gaming; or

(iii) that a club gaming permit or club gaming machine permit issued to the applicant in
the last ten years has been cancelled.

There are statutory conditions on club gaming permits that no child uses a category B or C
machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any relevant provision of a code
of practice about the location and operation of gaming machines.

Small Society Lotteries

Under the Act, a lottery is unlawful unless it runs under an operating licence or is an exempt
lottery. The Council will register and administer small society lotteries as defined under the
Act. Promoting or facilitating a lottery will fall into two categories:

() licensed lotteries (requiring an operating licence from the Gambling Commission);
or
(ii) exempt lotteries (including small society lotteries registered with the Council)

Exempt lotteries are lotteries permitted to run without a licence from the Gambling
Commission and are defined as:

e small society lotteries

e incidental non-commercial lotteries
e private lotteries

Page 50



D5.3

D5.4

D5.5

D5.6

D6.

D6.1

private society lottery
work lottery
residents’ lottery
customers’ lottery

Advice regarding the definitions of an exempt lottery is available from the Gambling
Commission’s website.

Applicants for registration of small society lotteries must apply to the licensing authority in
the area in which their principal office is located. The Council will not register a lottery
where the principal office is not located within North Hertfordshire.

Lotteries will be regulated through a licensing and registration scheme with conditions
imposed on licences by the Gambling Commission, Codes of Practice and any Guidance
issued by the Gambling Commission. In exercising its functions with regard to small
society and exempt lotteries, the Council will have due regard to the Commission's
Guidance.

The Council may refuse an application for a small society lottery registration if, in their
opinion:

¢ the applicant is not a non-commercial society

e aperson who will or may be connected with the promotion of the lottery has been
convicted of a relevant offence as defined in Section 353 of the Act

e information provided in or with the application for registration is false or misleading

In assessing whether or not a society meets the requirement of being non-commercial, the
Council will have regard to the non-submission of annual lottery returns as part of the
renewal process. Failure to submit a return may be considered as evidence that the society
does not meet the necessary criteria.

The Council is likely to revoke the registered status of a society if it thinks that they would
have had to, or would be entitled to, refuse an application for registration if it were being
made at that time. No revocations will take place unless the society has been given the
opportunity to make representations.

Temporary Use Notices (TUNSs)

TUNSs allow the use of premises for gambling where there is no premises licence but where
a gambling operator wishes to use the premises temporarily for providing facilities for
gambling. Premises that might be suitable for a TUN, according to the Gambling
Commission, would include premises such as but not limited to:

e hotels

e conference centres
e sporting venues

Page 51



D6.2

D6.3

D6.4

D6.5

D6.6

D7.

D7.1

D7.2

A TUN may only be used to permit the provision of facilities for equal chance gaming where
the gaming is intended to produce a single overall winner. That said, there can be more
than one competition with a single winner held at an event covered by a TUN. The facilities
may not be provided in circumstances where any person participating in the gaming does
so by means of a gaming machine.

Equal chance gaming is defined by the Secretary of State as gaming which does not
involve playing or staking against a bank and gives equally favourable chances to all
participants. Examples include games such as backgammon, dominoes, cribbage, bingo
and poker.

The Council can only grant a TUN to a person or company holding a relevant operating
licence, i.e. a non-remote casino operating licence.

In respect of TUNSs, the Act refers to a set of premises rather than individual premises in
order that a premises such as a large conference centre cannot provide regular gaming by
applying for TUNSs in respect of individual areas within the building. The Council will
consider the definition of a set of premises on a case by case basis having regard to the
specific circumstances of the application. In considering whether a place falls within the
definition of ‘a set of premises’, the Council will look at, amongst other things, the
ownership/occupation and control of the premises.

The Council will ordinarily object to TUNs where it appears that their effect would be to
permit regular gambling in a series of places that could be described collectively as one set
of premises.

Occasional Use Notices (OUNSs)

OUNSs permit the provision of betting facilities at tracks without the need for a premises
licence, providing the betting is offered on no more than eight days within a calendar year.
The track does not need to be a permanent racecourse, however races or sporting events
must be taking place at the track during the OUN. The intention behind OUNSs is to permit
licensed betting operators to use tracks for short periods for conducting betting where the
event is of a temporary nature, for example point-to-point meetings on agricultural land.

The Council has very little discretion as regards OUNs other than ensuring that the
statutory limit of eight days in a calendar year is not exceeded. The Council will consider
the definition of a ‘track’ and whether the applicant is permitted to avail him/herself of the
notice on a case by case basis in line with the Commission’s Guidance.

PART E: DELEGATION

E1l.

El.1l

Licensing Sub-Committee Membership

Ordinarily, councillors will not be invited to sit on sub-committees considering applications
within their Ward.

Page 52



E1.2 Ifitis established during a hearing that a member of the sub-committee has a Prejudicial or
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, that councillor will not participate any further in the hearing
or take part in the determination of the application.

E1.3 Alicensing sub-committee will adjourn a hearing and refer the matter to another licensing
sub-committee where it is unable to deal with an application because one or more of its
members are unable to take part in the determination due to a Prejudicial or Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest.

E1.4 If a member of a sub-committee becomes unwell or otherwise unable to continue during the
course of a hearing or determination, the sub-committee will adjourn the hearing until a
specified date when all three sub-committee members can continue the hearing.

E1.5 If amember of a sub-committee has to leave the hearing temporarily, the hearing will be
adjourned until such time as the absent member returns.

E1.6 If a member of a sub-committee has been present throughout the hearing and the
determination but has to leave prior to the formal giving of the decision, the sub-committee
chair will advise all parties of this fact. All members of a sub-committee must sign the
formal decision notice to signify their full participation in the hearing and determination and
confirm that the decision notice is an accurate reflection of the sub-committee’s decision.

E2. Delegation of Function

E2.1 The act provides that the functions of the licensing authority are to be taken or carried out
by its licensing committee. The licensing committee may delegate these functions to sub-
committees and/or officers of the licensing authority with the exception of the adoption of
the statement of licensing principles and a ‘no casino’ resolution which are both reserved
for the full council.

E2.2 The licensing committee has further delegated licensing functions as follows:

Licensing
Full Sub-Committee Officers
Matter to be dealt with Council (3 Councillors)

Three year statement of

licensing principles All cases

‘No casino’ resolution All cases

Fee setting

(where applicable) All cases

Application for premises Where no representations

licences Where representations have been received or all

have been received and | representations have been
not withdrawn withdrawn

Application for a variation to Where no representations

a licence Where representations have been received or all

have been received and | representations have been
not withdrawn withdrawn

Application for a Where no representations

Page 53




reinstatement of a premises
licence

Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn

have been received or all
representations have been
withdrawn

Application for a transfer of
a licence

Where representations
have been received from
the Commission or
responsible authority

Where no representations
have been received from
the Commission or
responsible authority

Application for a provisional
statement

Where representations
have been received and
not withdrawn

Where no representations
have been received or all
representations have been
withdrawn

Review of a premises
licence

All cases

Application for club
gaming/club machine
permits

Where objections have
been made and not
withdrawn

Where no objections have
been made or all objections
have been withdrawn

Cancellation of club
gaming/club machine
permits

All cases

Applications for all other
permits

All cases

Removal of the automatic
gaming exemption for
alcohol licensed premises

All cases

Cancellation of licensed
premises gaming machine
permits

All cases

Consideration of temporary
use notices

All cases

Consideration of occasional
use notices

All cases

Decision to give a counter
notice to a temporary use
notice

All cases

Registration of small
society lotteries

All cases

PART F: MISCELLANEOUS

F1. Relationship to other Statutory Duties

F1.1 The Council accepts that it should aim to permit the use of premises for gambling, subject
to the provisions of paragraph Al.2 of this Statement of Principles, when determining
licensing applications, however as a public body it also has a statutory duty to consider the

following legislative requirements:

() Crime and Disorder Act 1998

Local authorities are required to have due regard to the crime and disorder

Page 54




F2.

F2.1

F2.2

F3.

F3.1

F3.2

F3.3

F3.4

F4.

F3.1

F5.

implications of any decision it makes.

(i) Human Rights Act 1998
Local authorities are required to implement the Act in a manner consistent with the
Human Rights Act 1998 by giving due consideration to the European Convention on
Human Rights and Fundamental Freedoms.

(iii) Equality Act 2010
Local authorities are required to implement the Act in a manner consistent with its
responsibilities to consider the equality implications of any decision it makes.

Without Prejudice

Any premises licence or permit granted by the Council relates solely to the provisions of the
Gambling Act 2005 and considerations related thereto.

Any licence/permit is issued without prejudice to any other consent, licence, approval or
other authorisation required by other functions or responsibilities of the Council or any other
statutory body. The possession of a licence/permit under the Act does not supersede or
replace any other statutory provision.

Role of Councillors

The Council believes that local councillors play a vital role in representing and supporting
their local communities and may act on behalf of people affected by licence applications.

Affected persons may choose to be represented at a licensing hearing by their local
councillor who can speak on their behalf, providing the affected person has made a
representation. Equally, a local councillor can make a representation on behalf of the
community that he/she represents.

Local councillors with a Prejudicial or Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an application may
attend sub-committee or committee meetings to make representations, answer questions or
give evidence but must withdraw from the meeting immediately afterwards.

Any representation from a local councillor, whether in his/her own right or on behalf of the
community, will be considered and apportioned weight in exactly the same way as any
other representation. Additional weight will not be given for the sole reason of being a local
councillor or a member of the licensing committee,

Application Forms
Application forms, details of application fees and further guidance on the application

process can be obtained from the Council’'s website www.north-herts.gov.uk or on the
Gambling Commission’s website www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Assistance and Advice

Page 55


http://www.north-herts.gov.uk/
file://///srvfp03/userdocs$/scobb/Documents/Policy%20Consultations/Committee%20Stage/www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

F5.1 For further assistance, please contact:

Licensing, North Hertfordshire District Council, P O Box 10613, Nottingham, NG6 6DW
or
01462 474000 or licensing@north-herts.gov.uk

PART G: GLOSSARY

the Act the Gambling Act 2005
the Council North Hertfordshire District Council acting as the licensing authority

the Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities issued by the Gambling Commission

Guidance pursuant to section 25 of the Gambling Act 2005
the Order the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005
the Policy North Hertfordshire District Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy
AGC adult gaming centre

BACTA British Amusement Catering Trade Association
CCTV closed-circuit television

CSE child sexual exploitation

FEC (licensed) family entertainment centre

HSCB Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children Board
OUN occasional use notice

PASS The National Proof of Age Standards Scheme
SIA Security Industry Authority

TUN temporary use notice

uFeC (unlicensed) family entertainment centre

Page 56


mailto:licensing@north-herts.gov.uk

Appendix A

Local Area Profile

Location

North Hertfordshire is 1 of 10 districts within the county of Hertfordshire in the East of England,
bordering Greater London to the south and Bedfordshire and Cambridgeshire to the north.

North Hertfordshire covers 37,538 hectares and represents 22.85% of the total area of the county
of Hertfordshire.

North Hertfordshire is made up of 24 wards, the largest of which geographically is Hitchwood, Offa
and Hoo, making up 27.36% of the North Hertfordshire area.

Found in the South East of England, officially under the area of East of England, North
Hertfordshire itself has direct borders with the neighbouring districts of Central Bedfordshire, South
Cambridgeshire, East Hertfordshire, Stevenage, Welwyn Hatfield and St Albans.

94% of residents (Sept 2012) in North Hertfordshire are satisfied with the area as a place to live.

Population

The latest (mid-2015) estimate from the Office for National Statistics (ONS) puts the population of
North Hertfordshire at 131,700 (64,600 males and 67,100 females).

Hitchin Bearton is the ward with the largest population at 6.68% of the total population of North
Hertfordshire; Baldock East being the ward most densely populated with 40.6 persons per hectare.
The least densely populated ward is Weston and Sandon at 0.3 persons per hectare.

The number of households in North Hertfordshire was 53,426 in 2011 with 65.6% of residents
owning their own home compared to an average of 63.4% for England.

Age

The mean age on North Hertfordshire is 40 years old (39 years in England) based on figures from
the 2011 census. The predominant age band for North Hertfordshire is 45-49 years old which
represents 7.59% of the local population based on ONS Mid Year Population estimates.

In North Hertfordshire, latest (mid-2015) estimates states that 20.95% of the population is aged 65
years and over; 2.58% of the population is aged 85 years or over.

Ethnicity

Page 57




In the 2011 Census, 15.1% of the North Hertfordshire population were from an ethnic minority
background (defined as non white-British).

95.88% of North Hertfordshire residents had English as their main language, 0.6% of residents did
not have English as a main language and could not speak English well, and 0.11% of residents
could not speak English at all.

Hitchin Bearton ward has the highest number and the highest percentage per ward of ethnic
minorities in North Hertfordshire as well as the largest number of households that speak little or no
English.

In 1970, the first Gurdwara Sikh temple in the Anglia Region was purchased and renovated in the
Hitchin Bearton ward. This could possibly explain why Hitchin Bearton has been more popular
within ethnic communities, particularly as to why Sikhism is the prominent belief after Christianity
and no religion.

Deprivation

According to the North Hertfordshire Health Profile 2015, Hertfordshire as a whole ranks among
the 10% least deprived counties in England however Hertfordshire still contains pockets of
deprivation and some of those pockets found within North Hertfordshire are amongst the 10%
most deprived areas in the country.

North Hertfordshire’s most deprived Middle Super Output Areas (average population of 7,200) are
Letchworth Wilbury and Letchworth Grange and its most deprived Lower Super Output Area (sub-
wards averaging 1,600 people) is Hitchin Oughton.

Letchworth Wilbury was rated the 13" most deprived Middle Super Output Area in the whole of
Hertfordshire (February 2014) when considering the indices of multiple deprivation 2010 score and
the proportion of children living in low income families. Common problems in Letchworth Wilbury
include: childhood obesity, unemployment, economic inactivity, working age benefit claimants,
child poverty, household income, transport availability and domestic violence.

Letchworth Wilbury also scores the highest in North Hertfordshire for income deprivation, with 4
other wards also scoring above the national average for deprivation: Hitchin Oughton, Letchworth
Grange, Letchworth East and Letchworth South East. The ward with the lowest income deprivation
score in North Hertfordshire is Hitchin Priory.

Young People

The Chesfield ward has the highest number of 17 year old and under, representing 6.86% of all
North Hertfordshire’s children.

North Hertfordshire has the highest number of NEETS (young people not in education,
employment or training) in Hertfordshire with 43% of all NEETS living in Letchworth. A possible
explanation could be due to child poverty present in Letchworth and the huge difference in good
level of development figures between the 69.9% average within North Hertfordshire and the 34.8%
in Letchworth Wilbury.

Unemployment

Page 58



The percentage of the working population within North Hertfordshire that are unemployed is 3.4%
compared to 4.4% for England. The highest rate of unemployment can be found in the Hitchin
Oughton ward at 6.46%.

The percentage of all people of working age claiming a key benefit is 10% compared to 15% for
England.

The rate of the long-term unemployed claiming Jobseeker’s Allowance within North Hertfordshire is
5.6 per 1000 of the working age population compared to 10.1 per 1000 across England, with only
Letchworth East and Letchworth Grange wards above the country average.

3.1% of the population in North Hertfordshire have either never worked or are long-term
unemployed compared to the country average of 5.6%

Hitchin Oughton ward has the highest percentage of residents in North Hertfordshire who are long-
term unemployed or who have never worked.

Letchworth in particular has an issue with employment deprivation with 12 of its Lower Super

Output Areas in the bottom 20% for Hertfordshire. A Lower Super Output Area on the Jackmans
estate ranked 5" in the county of Hertfordshire and one on the Grange estate ranked 6™.

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Summary of Responses to Statement of Licensing Principles

APPENDIX B

Consultee

Observations

Comment / Action Taken

Amendments to
Licensing Policy

Royston Town

Welcomed the new Statement of Licensing Principles as "it
strengthened the case against gambling"

The Policy doesn't oppose gambling, it
retains the 'each application on its own
merits' basis having regard to the licensing

Council objectives. None
] ] ] This view cannot be incorporated into the
Strong views that no further licences should be granted in Royston Policy (see above comment)
Support of the principles of local risk assessments and their The Policy includes further clarification on
importance in ensuring gambling premises are not situated near to the local authority's expectations with None
hostels or support centres for vulnerable persons, or near young regards to the content of local area profiles
persons educational establishments and risk assessments
Suggests the Policy includes a specific requirement for operators to
have identified training programs for all staff to identify children and  |This is adequately covered by the Policy None
other vulnerable persons.
GamcCare This has been added as an additional bullet

Suggest that the local risk assessments require the operator to
assess adequate staffing levels at key points of the day, particular
near other premises frequented by children and vulnerable persons

point as part of the requirements of a local
risk assessment

Section A2.8.2 (last
bullet point)

Suggest that the local risk assessments require the operator to
assess the layout of the premises so as not to attract children and

This has been added as an additional bullet
point as part of the requirements of a local

Section A2.8.2 (last

vulnerable persons risk assessment bullet point)
Suggests that local authorities primarily consider applications by None
GamCare Certified Operators
NHDC Environmental|Little overlap between environmental health regulation and gambling
. . - None None
Health regulation however supportive of the Policy
Any consideration of local licensing should have regard to declining Each application must be considered on its
betting shop numbers, April 2015 planning law changes and low-level [own merits with regard to the promotion of None
problem gambling the licensing objectives
The Policy clarifies the requirements of a
General support of local area risk assessments local area risk assessment for North None
Hertfordshire
Concerns over the consequence to the trade of overly burdensome The Policy adequately balances the None
regulation promotion of the licensing objectives against
the reasonable requirements on operators
This is adequately covered within the Policy
Concerns over the proliferation of additional licence conditions without |and there is no evidence that any None
a specific section in the Policy highlighting the need for evidence inappropriate or unnecessary conditions
have been imposed in North Hertfordshire
The licensing objectives in relation to crime
Gosschalks on behalf and disorder associated with, and the
of the Association of protection of children and vulnerable
British Bookmakers persons from, gambling should be given a
Numerous concerns about the requirements listed within the Policy in |wide interpretation. All requirements of the
respect of local risk assessments and the relevance to the licensing |local risk assessments can be linked to None

objectives

these two licensing objectives and each local
risk assessment should reflect the specific
circumstances surrounding each premises
therefore no undo burden or obstacle is
being imposed

Highlights the incorrect use of the term 'operating schedule' in the
section regarding Child Sexual Exploitation; there is no operating
schedule attached to a gambling application

The term 'operating schedule' has been
amended to 'local risk assessment'.

Section B11.6

Highlights a possible misconception in the Policy where comment is
made about the licensing authority's ability to restrict the number of
betting machines in a licensed betting shop; there is no ability to
restrict gaming machines in the same way as betting machines

An additional sentence of clarification has
ben added to the Policy

Section C5.1

Page 61




This page is intentionally left blank



Steven Cobb - —

From: Town Clerk

Sent: 16 October 2018 09:08

To: Licensing

Subject: Statement of Licensing Principles Consultation
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Orange Category, Yellow Category

Dear Sirs,

Members of Royston Town Council discussed the Statement of Licensing Principles consultation at their meeting on
15" October 2018.

Members resolved that they welcomed the new Statement of Licensing Principles as it strengthened the case
against gambling, although they have strong views that no further licences should be granted in the town of

Royston.

With Kind Regards,

Caroline Mills PSLCC
Town Clerk

Royston Town Council
Town Hall, Melbourn St, Royston SG8 7DA

www.roystontowncouncil.gov.uk
Consider the environment - do not print this email unless you have to.

Disclaimer: You have received this email from Royston Town Council. The content of this email is confidential may be legally
privileged and intended for the recipient specified in the message only. It is strictly forbidden to share any part of this message
with any third party, without a written consent of the sender. If you received this message by mistake, please reply to this
message and follow with its deletion, so that we can ensure such a mistake does not occur in the future.

Royston Town Council, ensures that email security is a high priority. Therefore, we have put efforts into ensuring that the
message is error and virus-free. Unfortunately, full security of the email cannot be ensured as, despite our efforts, the data
included in emails could be infected, intercepted, or corrupted. Therefore, the recipient should check the email for threats with
proper software, as the sender does not accept liability for any damage inflicted by viewing the content of this email.

To view Royston Town Council’s Privacy Notice please click here

All emails sent and received by Royston Town Council may be subject to disclosure under access to information legislation.

Page 63




NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Ciurespesndie afifress:
North Hertfordshnre Disenee Counel, PO Box 106013, Notimgham, NGO DWW

Telephone: (01-462) 17106
Text Phone: (01462) 474500

DX3242010, Nottingham 39

The Licensing Manager Our Ref: EH/PC

North Hertfordshire District Council Contact Officer: Peter Carey

PO Box 10613 Direct Line:

Nottingham Email: o

NG6 6DW Date: 18 October 2018

BY EMAIL |

Dear Steve Cobb
STATEMENT OF GAMBLING PRINCIPLES CONSULTATION

Further to your letter of 31 August 2018, | am writing to respond to your consultation in my
capacity as a Responsible Authority under the Gambling Act 2015. | have had regard to Gambling

Commission’s guidance in reviewing your draft policy.

In my view, there is little overlap between issues that the policy addresses and the regulatory ‘
areas that the environmental health service is responsible for. | am not aware of any issues that

have arisen in the last three years from an environmental health perspective relating to gambling

matters that we have felt necessary to raise with you as the licensing authority.

The policy seems to be very comprehensive and sets a clear position for the regulation of
gambling activities in North Hertfordshire. | have no further comments or suggestions as to how it

could be improved. ‘

Yours sincerely

Peter Carey
Environmental Health Manager

Narth Hertfordshire District Council, Conneil Oflices, Gernon Road, Letehworth Garden City, Hertfordshire, SGo 3JF

David Suholes e .t "N, INVESTORS .
www.anorth-herts.govauk { IN PEOPLE

Chiet ) seautive Page 64



Steven Cobb

| ST eyt tee s s e e e A e L BT R S TRy e SR

From: Catherine Sweet

Sent: 31 August 2018 11:31

To: Licensing

Cc: Steven Cobb

Subject: RE: Gambling Policy Consultation

Attachments: GamCare Local Authorities Brochure 2018 (web-version).pdf; GamCare Training
Brochure 2017.pdf

Hello,

Thank you for your email, we appreciate your interest in our work.

While we do not have the resources available to allow us to personally respond to each Local Authority which
contacts us regarding their refreshed Statement of Principles, we have compiled a list of the issues or factors which
we think it would be helpful to consider below, more information is available via the Gambling Commission.

The function of the Statement is to reflect locally specific gambling concerns and to reflect the Council’s wider
strategic objectives. The active use of the Statement is one means by which you can make clear your expectations of
gambling operators who have premises in your area. This allows operators to respond to locally specific
requirements and adjust their own policies and procedures as required.

o A helpful first step is to develop a risk map of your local area so that you are aware of both potential and
actual risks around gambling venues. A useful explanation of area-based risk-mapping has been developed
with Westminster and Manchester City Councils, which gives some guidance on those who may be most
vulnerable or at-risk of gambling-related harm. For more information please see
www.geofutures.com/research-2/gambling-related-harm-how-local-space-shapes-our-understanding-of-
risk/

e Consider that proposals for new gambling premises which are near hostels or other accommodation or
centres catering for vulnerable people, including those with learning difficulties, and those with gambling /
alcohol / drug abuse problems, as likely to adversely affect the licensing objectives set out by the Gambling
Commission. This is also relevant regarding the proximity to schools, colleges and universities.

o Adetailed local risk assessment at each gambling venue — pertinent to the environment immediately
surrounding the premises as well as the wider local area — is a good way to gauge whether the operator and
staff teams are fully aware of the challenges present in the local area and can help reassure the Local
Licensing Authority that appropriate mitigations are in place.

e Does the operator have a specific training programme for staff to ensure that they are able to identify
children and other vulnerable people, and take appropriate action to ensure they are not able to access the

premises or are supported appropriately?
e Does the operator ensure that there is an adequate number of staff and managers are on the premises at

key points throughout the day? This may be particularly relevant for premises situated nearby schools /
colleges / universities, and/or pubs, bars and clubs.
e Consider whether the layout, lighting and fitting out of the premises have been designed so as not to attract
children and other vulnerable persons who might be harmed or exploited by gambling.
e Consider whether any promotional material associated with the premises could encourage the use of the
premises by children or young people if they are not legally allowed to do so.
We would suggest that the Local Licensing Authority primarily consider applications from GamCare Certified
operators. GamCare Certification is a voluntary process comprising an independent audit assessment of an
operator’s player protection measures and social responsibility standards, policy and practice. Standards are
measured in accordance with the GamCare Player Protection Code of Practice. If you would like more information

on how our audit can support Local Licensing Authoritiepalézéeggtact mike.kenward @gamcare.org.uk

1



For more information on GamCare training and other services available to local authorities, as well as recommended
training for gambling operators, please see the attached brochures.

If there is anything else we can assist with please do let us know.

Kind regards,
Catherine

Catherine Sweet

Head of Marketing and Communications
.

E:

Click here 1o sign up fo our free, monthly e-newsletter

Page 66



SOJIAIDS

Ajoyjny 02017
2IDHUWDS)




'selopdoD sAIHOddNS Ul PaLoaYR SSOUL Ylim Bupliom asoy)
1o pawio Buiupiy sBupyo Inonoyaq aAllon-oid ‘yidep-u| e

som AbpAiens
JIeyl Ul (sisyio paroayp, 10) sia|quupb wejgold ssoIon aulod
ADUL OUM JIDJS SUI|JUOLL IO} SDIARY JSlig PUD UCHODULUSD]

‘poddns 186
O} 8laym puD ‘sLondull SO [[@M SO ‘©oUSPIDUl PUD SINJoU S
‘Buliquuob wejgoid Jo enssi ayy JyBIYBIY oL BUISIO) SSOUSIOMY  «

opinoid yoiym sswwiniboid Buium.y
JO SbuDI BpIM D PadojeAsP SADY S\ "IXSIUOD Ul UOLDISSIUDU
S}l pupisiepun puo Bulgquob ws|goid ul uadxe alo app

*ALIUNOD 8y} ssoIoR 8BIDYD JO 991 Aj18|dWOD S|GD|IRAD S
UDIUm 831AISS LJUSUULDSIL PUD 82IARPD HadXxs Un AQ pauuldispun
1o ‘seoInSs Juswebivbus pun Bulpno ‘ASUDYNSUOD ‘BUIlIDI)
10j-pind Jo aBoxond XiW PUD %21d O SISLO SI0DWDS)

"SIOW AUDUL PUD SISYIOM UINOA “sisyiom uoinqold

PuUp a9)j0d ‘s,d9 ‘sieyona) 1o} Buiuniy padojeasp 8ADY pup
D8I INOA SSOIOD $S[01 BUIIUOLL Ul BupIom siep|oysyRis Jo abup)
O O} JupASIal Ssiadxe PUD sbpsimou padoleasp SADY S
"DaID [PO0] Yors Ul Buliquuot we|goid of asuodsal D1si|oy up
SPIACId O} SSLLOYIND [DD0] SSOIOD HOM O SICD S| DIDDUIDS)

Jusuoell pup yoddns

SAIJOSYS O} $s9000 aAY ‘Buliquund weigoid Ag pelosyn

Ss0Y} pup ‘siv|quupl wisigoid Buunsus pup xsu Buisoeioul

Yim asoy Buiebiol o) ybnoiyy Aojd Jeyos Bulowoid woy
‘Buliquipt wsijgoid sssippp o) ABayoys payoibalul up doensp
O} saluoyIND [©o0] Joddns o) pauolisod Apnbiun S0 10DWIDS

'SSSUSSS|RUIOY/BUISNOY PUD SaIIUID) PUR USIPIYD ‘AlS10s
APUNWIWIOD “BUiousD)| SO YINs ‘s9IAISS JO 9BUDI D Of YUl I SO
selIoYND |0o0| 0} 8bug|pyo B Jussaid U Bulquipd We|goid

"SI [0O0] Ul 8joid Ybiy D aARY AJjonsn Jou op

‘Pepuny isiym ‘sedinles poddns Buliquupt wsigo.d 1oyl s 800)
&M $9BUS|IDYD 8yl JO QUQ "SODINISS [UBUILDSL, PUD surd|sH Ino
ybnouy; sisjgquod wejgoid gl Ul | punoip spoddns Ajjusiuno
2I0DJWRS "JHoddns Buisseoop esoy) pup Buiquob we|go.id

AQ pajosin sidoed Jo Jequinu ayj usamiad dob o si aiey]

N 841 $s0I0D sadinues Uolngold pup suosud ‘a21j0d so [[em so
‘weyl Bulpoddns spouoisselord suijuol syl pun aidoad BunoA
UM SIOM SpN[OUIl SSAILDILUL SSSUSIDMD PUD UQILDINPS g

"S19WOLSND JIsyl poddns upo Asyl [oyl 0s @c__QE%

wis|goid fNOC0 10U MOWY seaA0|dWS [DYL pup paoaold o
sioAn|d 8insuS O }IOM S\ "ULIRY palpial Bulquob mm_E_c@

O} UolonIaful lIewolsnd aoudoiddo pupn Ayjigisuodsal (01008
‘Bujquuiol wejgoid inogp s1oW pUBLSISPUN YN 9L Ul S)onpoid
SPINCI OUM SIODISdO JOUL 2INsUS o) BUIWID ‘UOIIDILILST) PUD
Buiuo; epinoid o) Alsnpul BuliquioB ey Yim Hom os[o S\

"Dy palpjal-Bulquind

JO XsU-{0 SO payliusp! @10 oym sdnolb 1O} YyoosaIno puUD
UOLOONPS ‘ssausIomD Yybnoiy) uiny payoel Buiquuod esiuiuiw
Ol YoM OS|D S\ "SIDMYSIQUIDS Ulim sjusuealbo uoib ydnoiuj
PapUN} AjusunD 81D $82IAISS Jusuoal pup poddns 8102 INO

"Tolusuwsbpn!

-UOU PUD [DIJUSPLUCD 81D $821AI8s Uadxa INO ‘Buijguob
w|qoud AQ perosun SUOAUD 10} Juswioal) pup poddns
"©JIAPD “UOHDUIOLUI JO JoPIACId BUIpnS| S,) N SUL S| 810DWDS)

&OIDDHWDS 3S00UD AUM



uioug U sisquinB wajgoid 210 oym ojdoad Ujm pajpioossd JUBUIUIBACD 0} 1800 BUL 18|gD} U} UO SPIDD 885 '|

uIoLg

10815 SSOIOD

aundieH

/..

5 sdnoub xsu
suoluUaAIalUl . 10 / 9|Igniauina
[PUOLDN S} PIA i BUBOM
aUuluo pup Loddns 8814 n U !
200} O} 9004 . __ N%IIJ@_,. SIS}
JusWwIoSI] / selunwwoD \ SOpVY R \ SpaID lIayL / D // Ajqisuodsal
inoAssolp -\ yoypusiou| \ uoodwieyr \\  Bumpl /PO ssoP
o9l sdnoib Ajuoud // pupisiapun / ul Jseq spinoid
1o pajebin] A solouUINy w EEE—— 0} sioypiado
wuswsBoBUT ./ Ipo07 BuidieH ‘.u\‘ Buibus|ipyd
8 yooauno \ yBisu| byoQq \ uoypoueD
r
I9jO Ajoyiny [D207 S.2IDHWDY
*92US[OIA "90US|OIA ‘saln|ioL Ajqisuodsal o))
DUSBUIOP ‘USRI DISBUIOP ‘SUISDU0D ‘ssoussejouIoy ‘Uioay [poisAyd [PoI00s % Buqunb sesiuald Buquucd
[ORIDINS ‘UOILD|OS! BuipionBayos ‘SIDSUD Jus! pup [piuawl Jood we|qoid o) paxu 10 PEHIWWIOD SWIm
JusulAoiduisun ‘uolpoNpa uo opdudl ‘Buiquob ‘28NSILL &@2UDIsans SISOD JUBWISI0US puUD ALAILOD _oc_E@
. ‘umopioaig Ajwo4{  weajgoid wow 1geq PUD |OYOIY PUD sanss| Buisuson "OUSIOIN QUSR]
IBIDoS _._=_u< ‘9  SOJIAISS S USIPIIYD "G Buisnoy U{oSH dlqnd "¢ Buisuaori g Ajepos Ajunwwo °|

"AUO AISAS SSIPPD O} SSOINISS SDY SI0DWDS YBnoIog INOA $s0100 1B $ind syondw Buiquipt Jo eBunl ay] *ugz’ |5 oL dn
29 PINO2 AUIOUODS 3N @Uj Of BUIIqUIn JO 1SOO [0I00S SUL JDUL PSIDULSS UDI08s8y] AD10d lANd 104 SINIISU| 84} ‘910 Ul iSU POSOaIoUl 1O
310 9|doad sssjeuIoy PUD WSisAs @oUsN( (oUW 8y} Ul 8soy) ‘sjdoad Bunoa 'sdnoib uipua sposun Apouolpodoidsip Bulquod wa|qoid

'SOLIUNWIUIOD PUD SSI[ILID) ‘SIONPIAIPU 1O SIondul

4O abupI BpIM D YMm 8nssi [0I00s BUILIND-s5010 D §1 BUIqUIDD WB|gold ‘Palonduwll 810 SISUL0 USASS 0l dn 1e|qupb wejqoid Alans 10} Joul
PSLOWNSS OS|O §, 41 *WIIDY JO Sl LD Uil Z PUNOID UM N 8y} Ut ejdoed 000’001 PUNOID spoayn Buljquund uweigoid (oY) pajoulyss sl |

spaly P20 ul Buliqung wajqoid jo siopdug



~Saljijigisuodsal Ino Buipupisiapun
o} AsY sI 9j01 1IN0 Buimou)| ‘Buljquinb

wisjgold (Jo uoyusasid ayy) BuipipbHal *****

‘s1a1jddns jonpoid pup siopplado so

‘8]0l I1no Buipupjisispun Ul SN P3JSISSD | - NOILVOHILIID
AluIbpI99 sseo01d uooLISD) Sy, mm<o _\/_<®

o

N~
'so|diould JO (S)iuswaiols BuisuaD) Ul peppaquuid aIp ‘sioiniado N 101 Alicisuodsay
[©100s puNolo 8211oPId Jseg Bulowold ‘UoYRDLIHSD SIDDWIDS) 10 so|diould Syl ainsua 0} pebpINOJUS 31D SSlLIoOYLIND _Oonw,

"Wioy paoiel s
ADY sIoloiad) e

SOl YO SUL 10 SADM LUBU SU} Ul 9POW ‘SUOLODISIUI pesipuosiad Ayonb yoiy 1o 8njoA Sy pupisiapuN Lo)S

-Buliquot pup $ysi JO UOLDSILIUIL 8y} asiLoud pup Buliquuob sigisuodsal Jo ainyno © pappagule 8

'SOOINSS
Hoddns Buliguinf wejgoid spIomO] SIPNPIAIPUL JO BuisoduBis pupn UoUDILIIUSP! SUL Ul PSUIDIL 810 LOIS Alsnpul Bujiquips .

:1IOUL 2INsus
O} ‘suoidadsul puo gpno 4o swwriBoid UMo Jieyl spisBuo|o ‘SWIDSL S8IIUNWWIOD 1808 puL Buisuaor] JNoA oddns uoo app

"ULIDY pajpial-tBulguinb
SMBIAS] UOIDDIIHSD INO

WD) SJINISS ISUIOISND Y} Of WOOI PIDOJ 8yl Woy AYjiqisuodsal [0100s JO ainynd
0 pequis o} weay} Joddns pun Buiuioll I8yl Ipno ‘sainps20id pup so10l|od Jleyl meinel Of siojpiado Buliquipnd ypim 3om s

SsjWIUlW oL pup Bulquupb Jeyos aiowoid o) djey oL sainsoaul Allllgisuodsal [0100s JO abupI P

ASUD}NSuOH puD JIPNY - UOIDIYILISD SIDHWDS



‘Hoddns pupn digy Lsijpioads O} sipNRIAIRUL [O8IIP
PUD SUIS2U0D afpunul Of 8Bpa|Mouy PUD S|ks UL sepirnc.d 1

'S|oUOIsSa)0Id a1Doylpay 18yl0 10 siaxiom poddns siSsIApD
SUDIOIUID ‘sigxiom 210 Aowiud ‘yols Alsnpul Buliquuobd so
yons ‘udiny pajoje-Bulquund Ag parosyn asoyl J8/unoous
ADW ABy} 81eym $9|01 SUIIUOL Ul BUBIOM 8SOYL 10} S 8SIN0D SIY|

‘yoddns [poionid
PUD [DUOILOWS S [[oM S S|00) uoijoato.d JsAn|d Buipnioul
‘BIOP|IDAD S2IAPD PUR pHoddns oyl JO aBpaMmouy UIDHY e

"I04eP J8YLIN] {10118 Of UOLDSISAUOD JBUQ D @INLoNnus
PUD Jl 10} USa10s 0} Moy ‘Buliquunb we|qo.ld pupisiopun e

"$92IN0S
[oUR)el JualnD Jo abupni D PUD Usa10s Buquiob jeug o asn oy

Moy ‘wejgoid syl Ajljuspl 0} MOY PUD SIOLOD} sl ASY UO SNOO)
0 Yim ‘ulioy pajplal-Buquupb 1o Buipunisiapun U sSpIAOId

9jonb D 10} sh JoDU0D %

NOA JINS O} UOIDI0| D IV o
xowgy WEN

..0

(ado) sinoy ¢ _ _ _

SQIAPY jSlig pub uoipIyluSpj

WOl sSpitpueIspdI-mMmmMm
6L0T - L10T
8LSLT :¥3IAIAOYd AQdD

9J1J0 SPJEPURIS AdD =YL

"onss| 8y} Jo Buipupisiapun Jayag o Uiob Of YsiM Oym puo
‘uLpy paipja-bulquipb Ag palosip SS0yL JaIUNoouS ADW
Aeyl aleym sejol aullluol Ul BUuplom SsOyL JO) SI 8SIN0D SIY]

‘sooInes apudolddo
o} jsodubis 01 Moy pup sioidipul ‘Bulguod wsjgoid
puR BUllquUDB usemiag S2UBJaLIPD SYL PUDISISPUN e

alquurb

M Uaym uinig ey} 0} suaddoy oym pup siquunb sidoad
Aum “BuliquupB Jo ABojoyDASd Syl PUDISISOUN Of LUDIS

"Wyl punadq
S8SOUL PUD 8y s, jonpiaipul up uo Bulgquiob ws|goid jo spondlm

By} pup suloiduwAs ‘subis Buipnoul “uiny Um_ﬁo_m._-@c_ﬁc‘_n%
pup Bujquob we|goid Jo Buipunisiapun Uo SSPIAOR
all

9jonb b 10} sn }oBIU0D m

NOA JINS O} UCIP20| P |V 0

wowst WEK

sinoy £ _ F_

ssaualpbmy Buljqupg wajqoid

Buiuipi] ssoualbMy IDHWDS



%SE %02 %SC %02 %G1 %0L %S %0

0 8sngy dusswog
SSNSIIAl [OYODY
AUALOY [OUIWILD

v B
1BYIO pPaloslly
lBqupe =

SSUINTIPIQ YoM

swie|qold BuisnoH

ULOSH [o1suss)

Page 72

pajp|os| Buljee4

SoUINJIIQ diysuouniey] / Ajluuo4

SSIINOYIQ [PIOUBUI

ULPSH [RIUBIA / sseuS / Ajaixuy

"PIPNOUL £ /9102 Ul P3SO[OsIP s4ondWl UOUIWIOD JSOW 8yl “Ajouoion ‘(umous alaym) sI9Ioo aseyy AQ pasinl sjondull
SU} pup (spooysod Jo pod siy AQ) DaID Jisy) wol job am SIIPD JO Jaquunu Y INOGD BIOP UM SSIILIOYIND [000] SPINCIC UDD 810DWDS)

Jybisu| nijpQg



NN'BloaInoWnb Mmm k

nBioreownbaol Rl

000Z 1084 020 J

2IDHUWDS JODIU0D

‘PopeauU s poddns Jayuny a1aym
YMOMBU JUSWILDSIL SI0DWDS) 8U) OJUl ALOSIIP SISSN ©2IASS Ul e

‘sesiulald palissp Jeylo 1O AJIOYIND [000] WOl a1niedO

‘pepoddns g uod We|goid D JO Juswdolensp
8y} JO oBpys AUD 1D ‘BUOAUD aInsue o} Aojjod Joop Buoim-ou D
Buioiedo ‘seiuoyiny 0007 $S0I00 SISPIOUSYOLS UM BDBUT .

‘ALUNWIUIOD [D20] INOA UIylM
peppaguis @21A8s Yooalno Buliquupb oiioads 0 SpIAOL] e

Im sa2iAles Juswebobua Ino

"Uloy pelojal Buquuob oy diey pedxe

Bupiees ApuNuWoD 8yt Ul $901AISS [0 10} 1sodubis [020] b apIAoId
Ol s&dInes uolpgold pup e2ljod ‘sjlooyos ‘Allsnpul Buliguwob

SUL UHM JOBUUOD AjoAllonoid O) oM swipa} Juswsbobus Ino

'JOIUOD JO
no 100 sBulyl 810J8q SUSAISIUI O} MOY PUDISISPUN SM PUD ‘SOA]]
s,9|doad ui sdojensp Bulquuod ws|gqoid Moy pupisiopun sp

yonainO pup juswabpbug

08I0 INOA Ul Buliquinb wejgoid Jo siondwll 8yl 9onpal pup
uoddns pup jusuwiosll Jo axpidn syl aAoidull Of SO MO IO OU
10 $82IAISS INO 8j0W0Id Of S8IIIOUIND [0I0] YM Jauund Uuod apn

"syondull sl puUD
Buiiquuot wsjgoid uo ssipadxa [000] JO ©2IN0S D §I SIDDUIDS)

SUIO0IDYUD PUD WINIOS
BUIUO s, 8IpDWDS Bulpn|oul ‘Loddns J1oad puD aI0dIelyY

$921M8S [000] appudoiddo ojul BuisoduBis piomuQ e

JusuypalL SUCYdS|S) PUD SUIUO “©D}-0}-800) JO SBUDI Y on)

N
‘WIDY pagolel g,

-Buliquupt eonpal 0} SUCUSAISIU] JoUg PSPUSIXT PUD Joug @

@©
‘wipy paolel-Buliquob Ag pajosyp ssoyl puo -
sie|quIDB We|goId 104 S2IAPD PUD UOKDWIOMI auoydais] e

:MOU JYBll $SO00D O} 981 I SSOIAISS PapuUNL AJInl 8say]

‘SUOIUSAISIUI dNoIB pup auo O} sUo padxe
BulsAiep ‘SSIOA PUD PUDLODS ‘PUB|BUT $SOI0D $a10USBD
Jeuppd Jo }iomjau INo pub aInHUIDS) ybnoly) Bulpiado
‘Jusulinall pepuny Jo abuni b Ag pauoddns s| @218 SIY|

IDSA YO0 SI9|I02 000°0S

UDUY} 8J0W O Joyo gam DIA pup suoyd ayl 100 Loddns pup
S2INPL ‘UoiDULIoUI Buipiacid JUBIUpIUL Of WG WOl ADP AloAs
uado eundieH Bullqups [puoloN 8yl seiniado SIpDHUIDS

Jjuswiipaill
PUD 9JIAPY ‘UollbWlioju|



Sl LR B s s i

G00090L "ON AlPYD | 7716£62€ *ON PURiBu3 Ul paiaisiBey AupduwioD sigouoyD v
n'Bloraiwownb »
v_:.m._e.mheuEbm@&c_

000/ 108 0Z0

HV9 LN UOPUQT ‘POOY ISO3 | G-67
183alIS PIO SUIUDZZEN NVD ‘_Oom 1s|

Page 74




amCare
Training Services:
Awareness and
Prevention

GAMCARE
Page 75




‘poddns
puD diay jsioioads o) SIonNpIApUL
108IP pUR sWieduod 9bounw o)

sbpamou puUD siiivs a4t sepiacsd |

‘sjouoisssjoid

AI0DYLOaY a0 IO siaxiom poddns
SISSIADD ‘SUDIDIUID “SISHIOM 310D
Aiouaud ‘yoys Agsnpur Buquuob

S Yons ‘uupy paoe-buiqund

AQ pajoaD 850y} JOJUNCIUS

ADuJ Ay} a19uMm $3|01 SUIIIUOL U
Buppom asoy} 10j sl 85IN0D siy]

*poddns [ooyonid pup [ouciows
SD J|Jom SD sjo0) uoioeoid JeAoid
Buipn|ou) ‘9|goioAD 92IARD pUD
poddns oy jo aBpa|Mouw] UIcHY e

"IDJeR JaYNny JIDIE O} UOLOSISAUCD
Jeuq D AINYONYS PUD §I IO} USSI0S O}
Moy ‘Buquint we|goid puosiepun e

'$92IN0S [RUSJSI JUaunD
40 @Buni D pup ussos Buquiob Jeuq
© &sn o} Moy ‘We|gqold syt Ajljuspl

O} MOY PUD SIOJCO) sl ASY UOQ SN0

D Uim "wiiny paypal-Buliquobd jo
Buipunjsisapun yjdep-ul sepindid

moEo:ov:o._
INO §D 10 3YS-UO

"XDW G -.-.-

(@@o) sinoug | (|

92IAPY
jolig puDp uoiRIYIUSP]
- Buliquing wajqoid

'enss|
3y} Jo Bulpunjsiopun Jeyag b uiod of
ysim oym pun ‘uliny pewojal-Buquob
AQ paloayn asoyl Jajunoousd

AW Aeyl slaym sejol aupuoL Ul
Buppom asoy) 1o} sl 98INCD sIy),

'soonses apoudoiddo

0} Js0dubis o} Moy pUD SI0LODIPUI

‘Buiquint we|goid pun Bujquob
USSMIS] 90USISHID SUL PUDISIOPUN

QDB am usym

uIDIqg 8y} o) suaddoy Joum pup

8Iqwnt eidoad Aum ‘Bugupd jo
ABojoyoAsd sy} PUDISISPUN O UDIS «

way}l

PUNOIC &S0y} puD aJ] §,|[SNRIAIpUl UD
uo BujiquipB wajqoud 10 sjonduwll sy}
pup swoyduiAs ‘subis Buipniour ‘uLupy
pajpje-Buliquod puo Bujquob
we|qoid Jo Buipupisiepun up sepincld

25uj0 uocpuo]
INC |D IO Js-uQ

xowst WD
@

sinoy €

SSOUSIDMY
Buliquing wajqoid

UOLJUSASId PUD SSOUSIDMY

UoLOIHeI-PUD-BUIDL /AN B0 2I100WD B MMM ‘

« SISHDW SAIISUSS pUR
xo[dwoo a1ow yim Buipsp
Ul JUSPUUOD SIOW puD
paddinba jeyaq mou aIo
SUJDS] INO - [|D IO) UOISSas
Bulemodws up som sIy]

*SI9UWIOISND INO

109D UDD [Py} SANSS] Y}

pup Bulquob sjgisuocdsal

Jo Buipupisiapun

pup sbpamouw] Ino

pancidull eADY pajsoy
2IDOWIDS) SUOISSaS ay],

nBioamownbao  BRY

000 L0SL 020 J

:2IDDHWIDY JODIU0D

sjusuialinbal

INOA SSN2SIP O} ADPO} $N JODIUOD
SPaaU INoA Jns o} stonpoid Buuioly
10 ebBuni enisUeYSIdUIOD D JBAISP S/

‘wey paolal
Buliquob AQ paioaun 850y Uim
JODJUOD CfuUl WD ADW ABy) saAdljaq
oym ognd ay} ypm Bupiiom sjc)
SUIHUOL D Ul SUOAUD JOJ §] 2INY20Iq SIY]

"Algisucdsal 0s op o} a|quuoB o}
850042 UBiu oym esoyy aioonpe o)
pup ‘Buiquint we|goid Jo sseusIipmo
Ss5II O} SUCURSIUDBIO Juslap AuDW
UM YIOM UDD SIDDWDS ‘swiajgold
BuiquioB Ag pajoayo asoyy oy Alop
Bupioeds ‘asipadxe 10 SIDaA 0Z Ul

$80USNbITUCD PUD SBSNDD Y
‘Bunquind we|go:d Jo Buipupisiapun
@sp2I0U! O} sjpuCIsseoid 1ayjo

puec Alsnpu; Buliqunb sy ‘sisxoul
Aoljod “siojoonpe sieyoinasal
SURIDIVID 1O} Buiuioly papiacid

SOY @IDDWDS) /661 @2UIS

‘Buioy pup uoyoonpa ubnoayy
wIoy paolal Buljquinb asiuaiul o)
Hiom oso e “Buliquinb wejgoid

AQ PBI08Y0 BUCAUD JO) JUBULDS.)
puR poddns ‘e2iApn “UoIRUIIoI JO
lspinoid Buipos) s,y a4t Sl 2IDDWDS

¢OIDDUWDS 3s00y2 AYym

Page 76



<Seuijiqisucdsal

Ino Buipupjsiopun o}

Aoy si 9jo1 Ino Bumouy

‘Bulquinb wejgoid

(30 uoyuaresd ayy)

Buipiobai ‘sienddns

J1onpoid pup siopiedo so

‘gjo1 INo Buipupysiepun

Ul SN PaJSISSD AJUIDUSD
sse001d uouooIIa) ay|,

NN'Biora1noWDBBAI8I RIUDP 10 A9}
[SIUD JODJUCD UOKDULIOLNUI QI0W IO

20188 Buquupt puo

uuopoid Jley} o) jJubasial eoyonid pun
Aoljod uoyoajoid JeAnid pausuisidull
Allnysseoons aAnY {oy} ssiunduioD
BuquipB pasog pup| pup 9jows)
Uloq AJIHSD oM pUD ‘90110Dld JO 89P0
INo JsuBo passasso ‘sseooid Jpno
AIDJUNIOA D §] UOUDOWILSD) SIDDWDS)

"SpIopUD)S ybiy asay) o) aypledo

oy seiuodwod Ajjuspl upo sieAoid
1oU} JUDpOdWL S 41 JOY) BABIRG OSI0 S
‘uciosiold 1eAn|d pup Alqisuodsal
[RIS0S JO SRIDRURIS UBIY 9A9IYDD JoyL
suoyosiupBio asoyl Buibpamounoo

JO @ouppoduw ayy asiubosar apn

UOHDOLILIDD 2IDDWDS

“Alsnpul

BulguinB ey Jo Jo109s ajoula) ayj Ul
SI2UIOLISND Yiim Bulyoniaul ascoul Jo
PAaWID ‘S8NPOWI 8210UD @|dinud pasng
-OUOUSTS JO 531195 D §| BUILIDSTe DUXT

‘poddns
puo digy a9ypoudoiddo oy jsodubis
puo BuiquinB s|gisuodsal jnogo

Slswoisnod ulol ‘Bulquunt we)gouid
202IPUl ADW Py} AlaloD 19ADId O
puodsal puo Ajljuep! o) mey jno puld

‘uoloeloid JsAnid pun Bujguund
wisigold Jjo Buipunysiopun s08iou|

Buluipeie a

lnoy | H

Apnqisuodsay [p1oos
PUR UOI}03}0Id 19AD]d

:Buluipete pijx3 AUPHWDS

uoiRIYIISY B Buluipi] Alsnpuj Bulqupg

suoloniaul Bulquob siqisuodsal
SAI0DOId INC ALRD 0L PaeuU OyMm ‘senss
BunquuobB ajgisuodsal paojnase Yim
Bujpap Aysnpul Buligquioi ayy ssoion
Bupjiom 950y} 10 PaWID §1 8SINOD SIYL

'suoionys BuiBus)pys

oW Ypm Buipep usym aino-jjes
pup 8405 BuIAD)S UC SN0} [DIDSdSs UM
SUOIDSIBAUOD PUD §(I00 Bupuoy

JOJ s|Ixs [D21ORId PUD [DIISI08YL

BUL Ylm s1auioa| sdinba asinoo ay)

sleuipb wejgoid

1O YSU-JD “IDID0S UM SUOILODISLUI
Bujpuny ul esuepyuoD arcidul

0} ‘awl} aoio0id 10} saunpoddo
SSPN[OUI PUD SHIOM UQIDDIUNWIWIOD
[oUoPALIOW Moy Jo Buipupisiepun
yidep-ul up sanib asinod Anp-omy siy]

‘Buqunb

Jloy) woy uwupy Buousuadxa aio Asyy
JOU IO JaUJauM ‘SISWICISND [ UM
BungwnB e|gisuodsal Jo joalgns ayL
UoQ suoloplauUl sAlLoRoId sADY Of SIS
pPUD aBpa|mouy 8yl UM LDIS SOpIACId

9010 UOpuUo]
INO iD 10 JYS-UQ

xow g1 _.-.ﬂ.-..

sinoy z1 H

abupbysn
InoiAbyag BulpAllo
PUD UOHDIIUNWWOD
Ajiqisuodsay |pI00S

'sesiulald pasog-pup)] U Bupiiom asouy
1O SWDS| 821AI9S J8UIOLISND SD UoNs
*AHODADD SUUOL D Ul SISUIOISND YUM
suoionieu Bullqupb ejqisucdsel aADy
oym ‘Alsnpul BuiquuoB euj sso100
Buppiom ssoyy o pawio st 95IN0D SIYL

*SI8UIOISND
ASU-J0 UM SUOLDSISAUCD pUD
SUOODISJU! |[DUCHDALOW ‘@AIIDSLS
apnoid o} s|ivs Jo Juawdoeasp
oy} 9BDINCoUS [IIM J| "UOLODISIUI O]
uoyp|el ul sis|quueb jo ABojoyoisd
ay} jo Buipupysiapun up ssAlB
95IN02 sy} ‘WDy pajola-Bulquod
1O XSl 4O 2 ADU OUM SISWOISND

JO SOUSUSLODIDYD [RINOIADYST 84l
Ajpuspi of suipey Buidiay so |[om sy

s@oues poddns sioudoiddp

o} Jsodubis 0} aon|d pup awy Jybu syl
10 SI8UIOLSND 950U} UM SUCILODIBLU|
[NBUIUDSW “BAILSUSS [ONPUOD

PUD INOIADYSQJ JISL} pUDiSIiapun O}
BuiiguioB Ujim anss U aADY ADUI OUMm
slawiolsno Ajjuspl of seeio|dwe pun
sieBounu Aysnpul Buquind seigous

mqu:ou:o._
Ino b 10 SyIS-UQ o

xow sl W

(SINOH @dD €) sinoy 9 E

uoljoniau] pup
Ajniqisuodsay [pi1oos

Buiuipiy Alysnpuj Buljquipg

Page 77



's1oAn|d BByl O 810D
10 AINp D 8ARY oYM Alsnpul spods
BU! Ul slapDa] J0 PaUID §i 9SIN0D SIY)

poddns Jayuny

10} 0} Jsodubis UDD Asy} SODINISS UDIYmM
jo abBpeamouy auy yim wayl dinbe

(M PUR 2nss! a4} 4O salxa|dwoD ayy
PUDRISISPUN OJSa8pUaiD S|GRUS [IMm
‘Buquins wejqoid 104 ueeIos o} SIS
puD sBpamow Ul UM siapa| spods
pUDR $ayanod sepnald Buuoy sy

*dnoiB ysu-jo siyy Buown
Buquiob o) spnjLp ajgisuodsal

© sajouwoid pup ‘Alsnpul spods
By} pUD sSILISpPLID ‘sI8An|d spods
[pucissajoid Joy Buiquinb weigo:d
JO SSOUBIDMD SSSIDI SSINOD SIY)

moEo:ou:o._
INO 1D 10 SUS-UD o

XOW § -.--

sinoy ¢ .

‘suoypsiupBlo
103085 AIOJNYDIS PUD SBLNDYD JO
$98) POINPAI I8l 9M 90U 8s08|d

*abn)s Aup
10 "WaysAS 821sn IPUIVILD YL UIypm
Buppiom sucAuD 10y st Buiuioy syl

‘poddns seyuny Jo) o) Jsodubis

UpD ASY) s82IAISS UDIUM JO aBpajmouy
BY Yim wosl INoA dinba |Im pup anss)
BYL 1O seuyxe|dWoD sy} pupisispun

O} Jois 9|qoua JiIm Buiuo syl

‘Buquipb we|goid 10} UseIs pup
PUDSIBPUN ‘O SIDMD &4 O} S|[s puD
2BPaIMOU Bt UM JDIS INOA 9PIACI

‘PRLLUSPIUN SUDUISI

UaJO 00} Y21ym anss uo s Buguuinb
wejgeosd joy} eduspine Buljieduod

sl @12y} ‘uoypgoid uo esoy} o)
SOVUSBUD WO "UIBISAS a21sn[ [ouIuILD
|y} Ul esoyy JsBucwio juspasid
Ajpyouocipodeidsip st BulquinB wia|gold

moEo:ouco._
INO D 10 SHS-UQ 0

Xpw G|
L

sinoy ¢ E

suolpsiupbIQ pup
sqnjo siiods 104 - 991APY
jolg pup uolpIYIUSP]

wajsAg aausnp
[PUIWLLD 3y} 104 - SJIAPY
jeug pup uouRILIUSP]

UOIJUDASId PUD SSOUSIDMY

1a)I0M
2IDj[eM JO UDIDIUID D 8Q ADW NOA 10
JusupDdep 9ouDUy JUSPNIS 8yl Ul
Buppom aq Ao NOA - SJUSPNYS UM
LODIaLUI OYM SAIHSISAIUN 1D SIaqUISUl
LIS [0 Of Jupaalal sl Buiuioly siyl

poddns Jeypny 1o} o} jsodubis uos Asyj

SS2INIBS YoIyM JO 28pamou syl yim
peddinbe anDg) [IIm puL INoIADYag
BuquoB seyy jo Buiuearos jeug o
spincid pup Buiqund Jiay) ssnosip oy
SIUSPNYS SUAUI Of SIS UOLDDIUNLILIOD
[ooonid uIRb [IMm sespuayy

"PSI08UD SlD OYM SjUspnys
SsIARD pup Buigqupb ypm swajgo:d
Auap! oL sipis puo abpsmous
'SSUBIDMD S} UHM JDIS INOA 8pIACId
"SSIISISAIUN 10} WIADU0D Buisoaloul

up eI sensst Bugquupb Juspnys

mqu:o_o.._o._
INO D 10 S|is-uQ o

XRDW gL /]
o-.m.-o

sinoy § H

SSIJISIDAIUN 104 - BDIAPY
jSlig pup uolDIyUSBP]

‘61-11 pabo
sjdoad BunoA yim Bupuom suocAuo 1o}

S[QRJINS §} SSINOD PAJIPSIOTY AdD SIUL

‘poddns Jayuny

pasu Aayl 4l 0} sidoad BunoA jsodubis
O} JaUM JNOQD SSSUBIDMD PUD SNSS|
8yl yum Buiipsp usym aouspyuos
Buiquipb s,a1doad BunoA Jo ainyou
2y} Jo sbpemou sepinoid Buiuioly siug

‘opusbo uoyuaasid pun yioay
RuswW Buipionbajos 1sngol © Jo pnd
SO ULIDY SsiuluIl Of 8|gR @g 0} peon|d
[[2M 210 SISIOM UINOA PUD SISUDDSL
SO Yons sjpuoisseyoid Buiony YincA

"9UO PaAC| P 1o Bulquipb ayy

AQ pajoayD g OsIo ADUL DIOUL AUDIA
(102 "uoissiuwoD Bulquios)
sie|quiot we)goid ag Appalo ADw
0007GZ SO AUDW SO [0y} PaIDUIISS

S,4l pUD Meam yone a|gqund g1-| |
pebo sidoad BUNOA 000'0LE PUNOLY

221130 UOPUOT]
INO D 10 JUS-UD

"XDW G —-—-
‘....

(ggo) sinoyg | 1 |

SSOUIDMY
Bunqung wajqoid
pup ajdoad Bunoj

UOIUSASId PUD SSOUSIDMY

Page 78



The CPD Standards Office

CPD PROVIDER: 21518
2017 - 2019
www.cpdstandards.com




Page 80



. GOSSCHALKS

SOLICITORS

Please ask for:

BY EMAIL ONLY

, . : Direct Tel:
Licensing Section "e;n;',
North Hertfordshire DC Ourref: RIT / MIM / 097505.00005
#G52221966
Your ref:

Date: 23 October 2018

Dear Sir/Madam,
Re: Gambling Act 2005 Policy Statement Consultation

We act for the Association of British Bookmakers (ABB) and have received instructions to respond
on behalf of our client to the current consultation on the Council’s review of its gambling policy

statement.

The Association of British Bookmakers (ABB) represents over 80% of the high street betting market.
Its members include large national operators such as William Hill, Ladbrokes Coral and Paddy
Power, as well as almost 100 smaller independent bookmakers.

Please see below for the ABB’s response to the Council's current consultation on the draft
gambling policy statement.

This response starts by setting out the ABB'’s approach in areas relevant to the local authority's
regulation of betting shop premises, and its commitment to working with local authorities in
partnership. The response finishes by highlighting matters within the policy statement which the
ABB feels may need to be addressed.

Betting shops have been part of the British high street for over 50 years and ensuring a dialogue
with the communities they serve is vital.

The ABB recognises the importance of the gambling policy statement in focusing on the local
environment and welcomes the informed approach this will enable operators to take with regard,

to the requirements for local area risk assessments.

Whilst it is important that the gambling policy statement fully reflects the local area, the ABB is
also keen to ensure that the statutory requirements placed on operators and local authorities
under the Gambling Act 2005 remain clear; this includes mandatory conditions (for instance,
relating to Think 21 policies) and the aim to permit structure. Any duplication or obscuring of these
would be detrimental to the gambling licensing regime. The ABB also believes it is important that
the key protections already offered for communities, and clear process (including putting the
public on notice) for objections to premises licence applications, continue to be recognised.

Queens Gardens, Hull, HU1 3DZ T 01482 324252 F 0870 600 5984 }

Einfo@gosschalks.co,.uk W www.gosschalks.co.uk DX 11902 =Hull Le\}( l
Page 81 ce

A lst of partnars s avalable for insp=clion at the cbove address. %g:;{;:::i:: gi:l:?d‘ikt’::

This firen is authorised and regulated by the Selcitors Regulafion Authority under nurnber 61213



2/6

Any consideration of gambling licensing at the local level should also be considered within the
wider context.

e the overall number of betting shops is in decline. The latest Gambling Commission industry
statistics show that numbers as of March 2017 were 8,788 - a decline of 349 since March 2014,
when there were 9,137 recorded.

o planning law changes introduced in April 2015 have increased the ability of licensing authorities
to review applications for new premises, as all new betting shops must now apply for planning
permission.

o successive prevalence surveys and health surveys tells us that problem gambling rates in the UK
are stable (0.6%) and possibly falling.

Working in partnership with local authorities

The ABB is fully committed to ensuring constructive working relationships exist between betting
operators and licensing authorities, and that where problems may arise that they can be dealt with
in partnership. The exchange of clear information between councils and betting operators is a key
part of this and the opportunity to respond to this consultation is welcomed.

LGA — ABB Betting Partnership Framework

In January 2015 the ABB signed a partnership agreement with the Local Government Association
(LGA), developed over a period of months by a specially formed Betting Commission consisting of
councillors and betting shop firms, which established a framework designed to encourage more

joint working between councils and the industry.

Launching the document Cllr Tony Page, LGA Licensing spokesman, said it demonstrated the
"desire on both sides to increase joint-working in order to try and use existing powers to tackle local
concerns, whatever they might be."

The framework builds on earlier examples of joint working between councils and the industry, for
example the Medway Responsible Gambling Partnership which was launched by Medway Council
and the ABB in December 2014. The first of its kind in Britain, the voluntary agreement led the way
in trialing multi-operator self-exclusion. Lessons learned from this trial paved the way for the
national multi-operator self-exclusion scheme now in place across the country. By phoning a free
phone number (0800 294 2060) a customer who is concerned they are developing a problem with
their gambling can exclude themselves from betting shops close to where they live, work and
socialise. The ABB is working with local authorities to help raise awareness of the scheme, which is

widely promoted within betting shops.

The national scheme was first trialed in Glasgow in partnership with Glasgow City Council. ClIr Paul
Rooney, Glasgow’s City Treasurer and Chairman of a cross-party Sounding Board on gambling,

Queens Gardens, Hull, HU1 3DZ T 01482 324252 F 0870 600 5984

E info@ halks.co.uk W ; halks.co.uk DX 11998 =Hyl .
gosschalks.co.u www.gosschalks.co.u ﬁgaﬁré 82 Le\\,(cel

A Il of portners is avolable torinspsclion al the obave addiess, Legal Fraclice mnliiy{‘q[k
This firm s authcrised end regulated by th= Scicitors Regu'otion Autharity undsr number 61213 Law Society Accredited




3/6

described the project as "breaking new ground in terms of the industry sharing information, both
between operators and, crucially, with their regulator.”

Primary Authority Partnerships in place between the ABB and local authorities

All major operators, and the ABB on behalf of independent members, have also established
Primary Authority Partnerships with local authorities. These partnerships help provide a consistent
approach to regulation by local authorities, within the areas covered by the partnership; such as
age-verification or health and safety. We believe this level of consistency is beneficial both for local
authorities and for operators.

Local area risk assessments

Since April 2016, under new Gambling Commission LCCP provisions, operators have been required
to complete local area risk assessments identifying any risks posed to the licensing objectives and
how these would be mitigated. Licensees must take into account relevant matters identified in the
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy, and any local area profile, in their risk
assessment. These must be reviewed where there are significant local changes or changes to the
premises, or when applying for a variation to or for a new premises licence.

The ABB fully supports the implementation of risk assessments which will take into account risks
presented in the local area, such as exposure to vulnerable groups and crime. The requirements
build on measures the industry haD already introduced through the ABB Responsible Gambling
Code to better identify problem gamblers and to encourage all customers to gamble responsibly.

This includes training for shop staff on how to intervene and direct problem gamblers to support
services, as well as new rules on advertising including banning gaming machine advertising in shop
windows, and the introduction of Player Awareness Systems which use technology to track account
based gaming machine customers' player history data to allow earlier intervention with any
customers whose data displays known 'markers of harm'.

Best practice

The ABB is committed to working pro-actively with local authorities to help drive the development
of best practice with regard to local area risk assessments, both through responses to consultations
such as this and directly with local authorities. Both the ABB and its members are open and willing
to engage with any local authority with questions or concerns relating to the risk assessment
process, and would encourage them to make contact.

Westminster Council is one local authority which entered into early dialogue with the industry,
leading to the development of and consultation on draft guidance on the risk assessment process,
which the ABB and our members contributed to. Most recently one operator, Coral, has been

Queens Gardens, Hull, HUT 3DZ T01482 324252 F 0870 600 5984

Einfo@gosschalks.co.uk W www.gosschalks.co.uk DX 11902 —Hull L \\,( l

Alist of pariners isovalable ion al the above address ag e 83 Legagctke &Men“ik
i bl s S Law Society Accredited

This firm is autheris=d ond reguloted by ths Solcilors Regulation Aulhotity under numbsr 61213



4/6

working closely with the Council ahead of it issuing its final version of the guidance, which we

welcome.

The final guidance includes a recommended template for the local area risk assessment which we
would point to as a good example of what should be expected to be covered in an operator's risk
assessment. It is not feasible for national operators to submit bespoke risk assessments to each of
the ¢.350 local authorities they each deal with, and all operators have been working to ensure that
their templates can meet the requirements set out by all individual local authorities.

The ABB would be concerned should any local authority seek to prescribe the form of an operator's
risk assessment. This would not be in line with better regulation principles. Operators must remain
free to shape their risk assessment in whichever way best meets their operational processes.

The ABB has also shared recommendations of best practice with its smaller independent members,
who although they deal with fewer different local authorities, have less resource to devote to
developing their approach to the new assessments. In this way we hope to encourage a consistent
application of the new rules by operators which will benefit both them and local authorities.

Concerns around increases in the regulatory burden on operators

The ABB is concerned to ensure that any changes in the licensing regime at a local level are
implemented in a proportionate manner. This would include if any local authority were to set out
overly onerous requirements on operators to review their local risk assessments with unnecessary
frequency, as this could be damaging. As set out in the LCCP a review should only be required in
response to significant local or premises change. In the ABB’s view this should be where evidence
can be provided to demonstrate that the change could impact the premises’ ability to operate

consistently with the three licensing objectives.

Any increase in the regulatory burden would severely impact ABB members at a time when overall
shop numbers are in decline, and operators are continuing to absorb the impacts of significant
recent regulatory change. This includes the increase to 25% of Machine Games Duty, limits to
staking over £50 on gaming machines, and planning use class changes which require all new
betting shops in England to apply for planning permission.

Employing additional licence conditions

It should continue to be the case that additional conditions are only imposed in exceptional
circumstances where there are clear reasons for doing so. There are already mandatory and
default conditions attached to any premises licence which will ensure operation that is consistent
with the licensing objectives. In the vast majority of cases, these will not need to be supplemented

by additional conditions.

Queens Gardens, Hull, HU1 3DZ T 01482 324252 F 0870 600 5984

E info@gosschalks.co.uk W www.gosschalks.co.uk DX 11902 - Hull Le\\/ l
- o Page 84 (o

Legal Practice Quality Mark
Law Soclety Accredited

n Autherty undsr numbsr 61213




5/6

The LCCP require that premises operate an age verification policy. The industry operates a policy
called “Think 21”. This policy is successful in preventing under-age gambling. Independent test
purchasing carried out by operators and the ABB, and submitted to the Gambling Commission,
shows that ID challenge rates are consistently around 85%. The ABB has seen statements of
principles requiring the operation of Challenge 25. Unless there is clear evidence of a need to
deviate from the industry standard then conditions requiring an alternative age verification policy
should not be imposed.

The ABB is concerned that the imposition of additional licensing conditions could become
commonplace if there are no clear requirements in the revised licensing policy statement as to the
need for evidence. If additional licence conditions are more commonly applied this would increase
variation across licensing authorities and create uncertainty amongst operators as to licensing
requirements, over complicating the licensing process both for operators and local authorities

Considerations specific to the Proposed Statement of Licensing Principles 2019 to 2021

Paragraph A 2.2 contains a list of bullet points detailing matters that the Licensing Authority will
expect local risk assessments to include. This list needs to be re-drafted as it contains matters that
are not relevant to any assessment of risk to the licensing objectives. For example, the proximity
of proposed premises to churches, mosques, temples and other places of worship cannot be
relevant especially as moral/ethical alcohol objections to gambling are not valid reasons to reject
applications for premises licences (Gambling Commission Guidance- Fifth edition — Paragraph
5.34). Similarly, the list of bullet points contains the proximity of proposed premises to other
gambling outlets, banks, post offices, cash points, refreshment providers, premises selling alcohol
and other entertainment venues. Once again, the proximity of a proposed gambling premise to
any of these premises can have no bearing on the risk to the licensing objectives. Finally, the bullet
point that refers to anti-social behaviour, street drinking, under age drinking etc should be deleted
as these are issues of nuisance which are not relevant considerations under Gambling Act 2005.

Paragraph B 1.2 refers to the council promoting the licensing objectives. The Council must “have
regard” to the licensing objectives when exercising most of its functions under the Gambling Act
2005 and to make a clear distinction between Gambling Act 2005 and Licensing Act 2003

applications, this reference should be amended.

Paragraph B 8 explains the Licensing Authority’s approach to the imposition of conditions on
premises licences. This section would be assisted by a clear explanation that the mandatory and
default conditions are usually sufficient to ensure operation that is reasonably consistent with the
licensing objectives. This section should also state that additional conditions will only be imposed
where there is clear evidence of a risk to the licensing objectives that requires that the licensing

objectives be supplemented.

Paragraph B 11.6 requires “applicants to demonstrate the measures they will take to safequard
against CSE in the operating schedule.” Unlike the Licensing Act 2003, there is no operating

Queens Gardens, Hull, HUT 3DZ T 01482 324252 F 0870 400 5984

Einfo@gosschalks.co.uk W www.gosschalks.co.uk DX 11902 — Hull Le\)(cel
Alst of partnersis avalable fori P ag e 8 5 egal Practice Quality fark
3 Pparingrsis e Law Soclety Accradited

This firn is aulhorssd and reg ion Autherty under numbser 41213



6/6

schedule within a Gambling Act 2005 premises licence application and accordingly, this reference
should be amended.

Paragraph C 5.1 outlines the Licensing Authority’s power to restrict the number of betting
machines that are made available in licensed betting premises. This section would be assisted if it
was made clear that whilst the power to restrict the number of betting machines exists, there is no
power to restrict the number of gaming machines. The holder of a betting premises licence may
make available for use up to four gaming machines of categories B, Cor D.

Conclusion

The ABB and its members are committed to working closely with both the Gambling Commission
and local authorities to continually drive up standards in regulatory compliance in support of the
three licensing objectives: to keep crime out of gambling, ensure that gambling is conducted in a
fair and open way, and to protect the vulnerable.

Indeed, as set out, the ABB and its members already do this successfully in partnership with local
authorities now. This includes through the ABB Responsible Gambling Code, which is mandatory
for all members, and the Safe Bet Alliance (SBA), which sets voluntary standards across the
industry to make shops safer for customers and staff.

We would encourage local authorities to engage with us as we continue to develop both these
codes of practice, which are in direct support of the licensing objectives, as well as our processes

around local area risk assessments.

Yours faithfully,

GOSSCHALKS
Queens Gardens, Hull, HU1 3DZ 1701482 324252 F 0870 600 5984
E info@gosschalks.co.uk W www.gosschalks.co.uk DX 11902 - Hull Le\\,@el

Page 86 Legal Practice Quality Mark

Law Socfety Accredited

onty under numbsr 61213



Agenda Item 7

LICENSING AND APPEALS COMMITTEE
5 NOVEMBER 2018

PART 1 - PUBLIC DOCUMENT

TITLE OF INFORMATION NOTE: LICENSING ANNUAL REPORT
INFORMATION NOTE OF: LICENSING MANAGER

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: CLLR BERNARD LOVEWELL
HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

COUNCIL PRIORITY: PROSPER AND PROTECT
1. SUMMARY

1.1 The purpose of this information note is to give the Licensing and Appeals Committee
an overview of the work undertaken by the licensing service over the past twelve
months.

1.2 The period covered by the information note is 1 October 2017 to 30 September 2018.
2. OVERVIEW OF SERVICE

2.1 The service consists of a licensing manager, a senior licensing officer and a licensing
officer. Administrative support, including processing of some application types, is
received by officers within the Management Support Unit (MSU).

2.2 The licensing service’s main activities are the determination, issue and enforcement of
licences/consents/permits relating to the following activities:

(1) Alcohol, entertainment and late night refreshment
(includes: all sales of alcohol, performance of plays, exhibition of films, indoor
sporting events, boxing and wrestling, performance of live music, recorded
music, performance of dance, sale of hot food/drink between the hours of 11pm
and 5am)

(ii) Gambling
(includes: betting shops, bingo halls, casinos, racing track betting, amusement
arcades, small society lotteries/raffles, gaming machine permits)

(iii) Hackney carriages and private hire
(includes: drivers, vehicles and operators)

(iv) Street trading

(v) Charitable collections
(includes: street collections and house-to-house collections)

(vi) Animal establishments
(includes: dog/cat boarding, dog breeding, riding establishments, pet shops,
zoos, dangerous wild animals, exhibition of animals)

Page 87



(vii)  Sex establishments
(includes: sex shops, sex cinemas, sexual entertainment venues such as
pole/lap dancing clubs)

(viii)  Scrap metal dealers
(includes: sites and mobile collectors)

(ix) Hypnotism

2.3 All activities undertaken by the licensing service are in fulfilment of statutory duties
placed on the Council.

3. CURRENT LICENCES
3.1 As at 30 September 2018, the number of current licences was:

TOTAL LICENCES

Premises Licence 495
Alcohol, entertainment and late night refreshment |Club Premises Certificate 35

Personal Licence 1521| 2051

Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence 1

Betting (Other) Premises Licence 19

Club Gaming Machine Permit 2

Club Gaming Permit
Fast Track Club Gaming Machine Permit
Gambling Fast Track Club Gaming Permit

N | WO | —

Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permit 14

Notification of 2 or less Gaming Machines 77
Small Society Lotteries 140
Unlicensed FEC Gaming Permit 11 266
Dual Driver 102
Hackney Carriage Driver 138
Hackney carriage and private hire chkney.Carngge Vohicls g3
Private Hire Driver 147
Private Hire Operator 40
Private Hire Vehicle 109] 705
: Street Trading (Fixed Pitch) 2
S Street Trading (Town Centre Consent) 4 6
Chisiabis colisetions House to Houge Collection 39
Street Collection 55 94
Animal Boarding Establishment 12
Dangerous Wild Animals 1
Dog Breeding Establishment 1
Animal establishments Dog Day Creche 1
Home Boarding 18
Pet Shop 4
Riding Establishment 2 39
Scrap metal dealers Scrap Metal Dealer Site 4
Sex establishments Sex Shop 1
3166

Page 88



In addition to these licences which, in most cases, are granted in perpetuity the
licensing service also granted 645 temporary licences (known as temporary event
notices or TENs) which are specific to one-off small scale events.

APPLICATIONS

The number of applications processed within the period 1 October 2017 to 30
September 2018 was:

Number of applications received

Change of details 6
Upgrade to dual 7
Replacement licence 1
Replacement badge 1
New 2
Renewal 17
Change of details
Replacement licence
Replacement badge
Renewal 46
New 1
Change of details 13
Transfer of ownership 11
New 36
Renewal 199
Replacement licence 12
Replacement plate 6
Temporary Vehicle

Plate 15
Change of details
Replacement badge 1
Renewal 20
New 39
Upgrade to dual 2
Change of name or

address 1
New 3
Renewal 6
Change of details 4
Transfer of ownership 1
New 29
Renewal 99

Page 89



Replacement licence

Replacement plate

Temporary Vehicle
Plate

145

603

New

Renewal

New

Renewal

Transient Trader

New

Animal
Licensing

Animal Boarding
Establishment

New

Renewal

10

13

Amend a schedule of
animals (No visit)

Renewal

Dog Breeding
Establishment

Renewal

Dog Day Créche

Renewal

New

Renewal

Pet Shop

Renewal

New

Renewal

42

Scrap Metal

Site Licence

New

Replacement Licence

Minor Variation

Film Classification

New

Rk NNk w

Late TEN

126

TEN

519

New

74

Change of name or
address

29

New

20

Change of name or
address

Vary DPS

90

Transfer

32

Variation

11

Minor Variation

20

Replacement Licence

Notification of Interest

Page 90




5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Notification of 2 or less
Gaming Machines New 10 10
Gamblin

9 New 30

Renewal 45 85
House to House
Collection New 36
Street Collection New 45
Sex

Establishments Sex Shop Renewal 1 1 1

MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE REQUESTS

The licensing service receive a high number of service requests in writing and by
telephone, most notably requests for advice on the need for and the submission of an
application.

The high volume of telephone requests is not currently quantifiable as most are not
recorded within the database if they can be resolved either at the time of the call or by
a returned call or email. Those that require a more detailed investigation and/or
response are logged as service requests for officers.

The number of recorded service requests within the period 1 October 2017 to 30
September 2018 was:

MISCELLANEOUS

Service requests 205
Taxi complaints 40
Taxi compliance tests 363
Taxi Verbal knowledge tests 118
Taxi computerised topographical tests 40
Taxi DBS appointments 155

921

The licensing service receives a significant number of freedom of information (FOI)
requests, mainly in relation to hackney carriage and private hire, or animals. The total
number of FOI requests received within the period 1 October 2017 to 30 September
2018 was twenty-four (24).

Page 91



6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

8.1

8.2

INSPECTIONS

The licensing service undertakes a series of risk-based planned inspections which are
currently reported by way of a local performance indicator. Other ad-hoc visits are
undertaken as part of complaint investigations or courtesy visits. The number of
programmed inspections undertaken within the period 1 October 2017 to 30
September 2018 was:

INSPECTIONS

Animal Inspection 21
Gambling Insp - Betting (other) 11
Licensed Premises (alcohol/entertainment/late night refreshment) 260
Private Hire Operator Insp 20
Scrap Metal Site 3
Sex Establishment 1

316

LICENSING HEARINGS

Applications for new, varied or reviewed premises licences/club premises certificates
under the Licensing Act 2003 (alcohol, entertainment and/or late night refreshment)
that receive representations are determined by a licensing and appeals sub-committee.

The number of licensing sub-committee hearings held within the period 1 October 2017
to 30 September 2018 was seventeen (17).

A licensing and appeals sub-committee would also determine contested applications
under the Gambling Act 2005 although no such applications were received within the
period 1 October 2017 to 30 September 2018.

A licensing and appeals sub-committee would also determine any application for the
grant of a new sex establishment although no such applications were received within
the period 1 October 2017 to 30 September 2018.

POLICY WORK

To ensure transparency for applicants and the public, and consistent decision-making,
each aspect of licensing has its own policy clearly stating the Council’s requirements
and local interpretation where legislation allows.

Each policy has to be kept under review to ensure that it remains fit-for-purpose and
reflects any changes in legislation or national guidance. During the period 1 October
2017 to 30 September 2018, the following policies were reviewed:

(1) Review required by prescribed dates within legislation
Gambling Act 2005

Page 92



8.3

8.4

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

(ii) Review as locally-set policy review dates had been reached
Animal licensing
House to house collections
Street collections
Street trading
Sex establishments
Hackney carriage and private hire

Following the review of the animal licensing policy, Government introduced a new
licensing regime resulting in the policy consultation having to be withdrawn. The new
regime took effect from 1 October 2018 and a new consultation is planned to
incorporate the new requirements once officers have implemented the new regime and
processed this year’s annual renewals. The implementation process was significantly
affected by Government only publishing mandatory guidance in late July; prescribed
application forms are still awaited.

Following the conclusion of the senior management restructure, all of the existing
policies have been or are currently being amended to reflect the new structure.

FUTURE PLANS

The licensing service has a number of future developments targeted at smarter ways of
working, customer self-service and revenue generation. It is important to be aware that
some of these ideas are still at the developmental stage however it is hoped that they
can all be achieved.

Public Register

The licensing public register is planned to ‘go live’ in November giving the public
access to all licences and applications, initially for the Licensing Act 2003 and
Gambling Act 2005 which are statutory requirements, but hopefully extending to alll
other aspects of licensing.

Once ‘live’, further development of the online portal is planned to allow:

® consultation responses to be submitted electrically by statutory consultees and
the public; and
(ii) electronic submission of applications

It is hoped to have these two developments ‘live’ by the end of 2019.

Pre-application Advice

Licensing officers currently undertake a significant amount of advice in respect of
applications or potential applications resulting, in part, from a lack of information on our

website combined with the specific complexities of each application.

Additionally, applicants are utilising licensing agents and solicitors to make applications
on their behalf which is an expensive process.

Page 93



9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

10.

10.1

Whilst licensing case law dictates that Councils cannot make a profit from licensing
fees, pre-application advice falls outside of the prescribed fee format. It is planned to
introduce a pre-application advice service in 2019 allowing applicants to discuss their
specific plans with a licensing officer and receive assistance with the application
process. This service will be subject to an hourly-rate, chargeable in 15 minute blocks
(or part thereof) and can include advice, application submission and advanced liaison
with the statutory consultees.

Customer Self-Service

To facilitate the introduction of the pre-application advice service and to improve
service provision to the public, it is intended to review all of the licensing web pages
making them more informative and user-friendly.

Currently, most application forms are sent out in hard copy on request. By moving
towards online applications and downloadable forms on the website, the provision of
hard copy application forms and the associated postage costs should significantly
reduce.

Smarter Ways of Working

An area that we hope to investigate in 2019 is reducing the amount of customer
contact throughout an application process. This is most relevant to hackney carriage
and private hire applications where applicants have a number of contacts as part of
each application. These contacts can be a mix of telephone, email and face-to-face
contacts and involve the submission of various documents to the Council’s scanning
facility in Nottingham.

If the application process can be simplified and made more convenient for the
customer, and more cost effective for the Council, this should be pursued.

CONTACT OFFICER

Steve Cobb, Licensing Manager
steven.cobb@north-herts.gov.uk, ext: 4833

Page 94


mailto:steven.cobb@north-herts.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 MINUTES - 12 MARCH 2018
	6 GAMBLING ACT 2005: STATEMENT OF LICENSING PRINCIPLES 2019-2022
	Appendix A - Proposed Statement of Licensing Principles
	Appendix B - Summary of Responses to Statement of Licensing Principles
	Appendix C - Response to Consultation

	7 INFORMATION NOTE: LICENSING ANNUAL REPORT

